

UNIVERSITETI I EVROPËS JUGLINDORE УНИВЕРЗИТЕТ НА ЈУГОИСТОЧНА ЕВРОПА SOUTH EAST EUROPEAN UNIVERSITY

Faculty of Languages, Cultures and Communication MA in ELT Program

Master Thesis: "Addressing the needs of gifted and talented students in English as Second Language courses for young learners"

Candidate: SumejaMemedi Mentor: doc. D-r. VeronikaKareva

ABSTRACT

"All of us do not have equal talent, but all of us should have an equal opportunity to develop our talent" – John F. Kennedy. A famous quote by John Kennedy was an encouraging element to decide and work on the needs of Gifted and Talented children. The purpose of this thesis is to explore the approach of English Language gifted and talented children in their schools by the teachers, school administration and society. Its focus was on younger students in their first and second grades in order to find out whether their needs are being accomplished.

The research was conducted in theRepublic of Macedonia and in order to come to accurate results, we used three instruments: interviews with teachers, questionnaires for parents and class observation. The first instrument, the teachers' interview, was conducted in thirteen elementary classes, in public and private schools. The second instrument, questionnaires for parents, were questions about their child interest and development but unfortunately, it has to be noted that parents interest as part of this research, was not as expected. Only four parents accepted to answer the questions. The last instrument, the class observation was performed in three classes.

This study reveals whether the differentiated teaching methods were used in teaching the English language to young gifted learners; put it in the focus of the educational institutions and teachers the importance of gifted and talented children education. Also the identification of gifted and talented children in an earlier age, on primary classes, what their characteristics are, finding out their needs and how to nurture, give them the opportunity to excel in the realm they are gifted.

Hopefully, the gathered data from the study will prove that the main reasons that lead many gifted and talented students to success are the teaching strategies used, the support they get from educational institutions and parents awareness for their child giftedness or talent. Additionally, this researchseeks to help teachers follow students' advancement in the subject from a different point of view.

ABSTRAKT

"Tëgjithënenukkemi talent tëbarabartë, portëgjithëduhettëkemimundësitëbarabartëpërtëzhvilluartalentintonë" - John F. Kennedy.Njëcitim i famshëmnga John Kennedy ishte element inkurajuespërtëvendosurdhepunuarpërnevojat e fëmijëve dhuntidhetëtalentuar.Qëllimi i këtijhulumtimiështëtëhulumtojëgasjen fëmijëveme me e dhuntidhetëtalentuarne sferen egjuhësangleze,nëshkollangaana e mësuesve, administratësshkolloredheshoqërisë.Fokusikryesor i ketijhulumtimiështenënxenesitmëtërinj, nëklasën e parëdhetëdytë, nëmënyrëqëtëzbulonimnësenevojat e tyrepopermbushen.

Hulumtimi u zhvilluanëRepublikën e Maqedonisëdhepërtëarriturrezultatetësakta, u përdorëmtreinstrumente: intervista me mësuesit, pyetësorëtpërprindëritdhevëzhgimin e klasave. Instrumenti i parëoseintervistat me mësimdhënësit u zhvilluannëtrembëdhjetëklasafilloreneshkollapublikedhe private.Instrumenti i dytë, pyetësorëtpërprindërit, ishinpyetjerrethinteresitdhezhvillimittëfëmijës, për fat tëkeq, duhettëtheksohet interesimi i prindërvetëjenëpjesë këtijhulumtiminukishtesiçpritej. se e Vetëmkatërprindërpranuant'iupërgjigjeshinpyetjeve.Instrumenti i fundit, vëzhgimi i klasës u kryenëtreklasa.

Kystudimzbulonnësemetodat diferencuaratëmësimdhëniesjanëpërdorurnëmësimin e e gjuhësanglezepërnxënësit rinjtëtalentuar; duke e vënënëfokustëinstitucionevearsimoredhemësuesverëndësinë edukimittëfëmijëve e me i dhuntidhetëtalentuar. Gjithashtuidentifikimi fëmijëve me dhuntidhetëtalentuarnënjëmoshëmëtëhershme, siklasafillestare, cilatjanëkarakteristikat e tyre, gjetja e nevojavetëtyredhesitëushqejnëdhet'ujapinmundësikëtyrefëmijëvetëshkëlqejnënëfushënqëatajanëtëtale ntuar.

Shpresojmëqëtë dhënat e mbledhurangakystudim do tëargumentojne se arsyetkryesoreqë i bëjnëstudentët me dhuntidhetëtalentuartekenësukses,janëstrategjitë e tëshfrytezuara permësimdhënies, mbështetjaqëmarrinngainstitucionetarsimore, dhevetëdija e prindërvrpërtalentinefëmijëve. Përveçkësaj, kystudimsynontëndihmojëmësuesittëanalizojnëpërparimin e nxënësvenganjëkëndvështrimtjetër.

3

АБСТРАКТ

"Ситенемамееднаковталент,

носитениетребадаимамееднакваможностдагоразвиеменашиотталент" -∐он Φ. Кенеди. ПознатиотцитатнаЦонКенедибешеохрабрувачкиелементзадасеодлучамдаработам наоваа тема потребитенанадарените талентиранитедеца.Целтанаоваатеза И e дасеиспитапристапотнанадаренитеи талентиранитедецанасферата на англискијазиквонивнитеучилиштаодстранананаставниците, училишнатаадминистрација И општеството.Нејзиниотфокусбешенапомладитеученици,вопрвите И вторитеодделенијасоцелдасеутврдидалинивнитепотребисеостваруваат.

ИстражувањетобешеспроведеновоРепубликаМакедонија, а зададојдемедоточнирезултатикористевметриинструменти: интервјуасонаставници, прашалницизародители набљудувањеначасовите. И Првиотинструментилиинтервјусонаставницитебеаспроведенивотринаесетосновникласа, во јавни И приватниучилишта. Вториотинструмент, прашалницизародителите, беапрашањазаинтересот И развојотнанивнотодете, ноинтересотнародителитедабидатделодоваистражување, небешекакоштосеочекуваше. Самочетириродителиприфатијадаодговоратнапрашањата. Последниот инструмент набљудувањетоначасовитебешеизвршеновотриодделенија.

Оваастудијаоткривадалидиференциранитенаставниметодибилекористенивопредавањет онаанглискиотјазикнамладитенадарениученици; ставајќи го вофокусотнаобразовнитеинституции наставницитезначењетонанадарените И И талентиранитедеца. Истотакаидентификувањетонанадарените И талентиранидецаворанавозраст, BO основнитеодделенија, коисенивнитекарактеристики, наоѓањенанивнитепотреби и какодасенегуваат и даимседадеможностнаовиедецадасјаат вообластанакојасенадарени.

Сенадевамедекасобранитерезултатиодстудијатаќедокажатдекаглавнитепричиникоиги водатнадарени и талентираниученицидо успехсенаставнитестратегииштосекористат, поддршкаташтојадобиваатодобразовнитеинституции, и родителката свестзанадареноститалентот на нивното дете.Дополнително, оваастудијаимазацелдаимпомогненанаставницитедагоследатнапредувањетонаученицитеодпои наквагледнаточка.

4

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

List of tables and Figures

Figure 1: Three ring model of Giftedness	13
Figure 2: Gifted and Talented Identification System	34
Table 1 - The Purdue Three Stage Model	17
Table 2 - Characteristics of High Achievers and Gifted Learners	26
Table 3 - Characteristics Common to Gifted Children	28
Table 4 - Learning Characteristics of Gifted Students	29

Table of Contents

List of Tables and Figures

CHAPTER I

1.1 Introduction	.9
1.2 Research Aims	10
1.3 Research objectives	11
1.4 Description of thesis organization	.12

CHAPTER II

LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1Theoreticalbackground	!
2.1.1 Renzulli1	3
2.1.2 Sternberg14	l
2.1.3 Feldhusen15	5
2.1.4 Gardner1	7
2.2 History of Gifted and Talented Education	
2.3 Definition of Gifted and Talented20)
2.3.1 Giftedness vs. Talent21	
2.3.2 Myths and Stereotypes22	
2.4 Social and emotional development of gifted students23	
2.5Characteristics of Gifted and Talented25	
2.5.1 General Characteristics25	
2.5.2 Individual Characteristics)
2.6 Identification of Gifted and Talented Students	
2.7 Methods of Identification	
2.7.1 Teacher Nomination32	
2.7.2 Parent Nomination32	
2.7.3 Self Nomination32	
2.7.4 Standardized Test	
2.7.5 Test of Intelligence or Ability	

2.7.6 Test of Achievement

CHAPTER III

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

3.1 Purpose of the study	36
3.2 Research Questions	36
3.3 Research Hypothesis	37
3.4 Participants	37
3.5 Instruments	38

CHAPTER IV

RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

4.1 Teacher's interview
4.1.1 Elementary school "NikollaVapcarov" II-b – Skopje
4.1.2 Elementary school "HasanPrishtina" II-aSkopje
4.1.3 Elementary school "HasanPrishtina" I-a – Skopje
4.1.4 Elementary school "Tefeyyuz" II-b - Skopje
4.1.5 Elementary school "Tefeyyuz"I-a - Skopje42
4.1.6 Elementary school "YahyaKemal"IIa – Skopje
4.1.7 Elementary school "Istikbal" II-a — Tetovo44
4.1.8 Elementary school "Istikbal " I-a - Tetovo45
4.1.9 Elementary school "Bashkimi" I-c – Gostivar46
4.1.10 Elementary school "Bashkimi " I-a – Gostivarv47
4.1.11 Elementary school "Ismail Qemali" II-a – Gostivar
4.1.12 Elementary school "Ismail Qemali"1-b – Gostivar
4.1.13 Elementary school "Ismail Qemali" I-a – Gostivar
4.2 Parent Questionnaires
4.3 Class Observation
4.3.1 Class I
4.3.2 Class II
4.3.3 Class III
4.4 Analysis of the Results
4.5 Findings
4.6 Research Hypothesis

CHAPTER V

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS	
5.1 Conclusion	62
5.2 Recommendations	64

5.3 Limitations	
BIBLIOGRAPHY	67
REFERENCES	00
REFERENCES	80

CHAPTER I

1.1 Introduction

Listening every day manysuccessful stories for gifted children around the world, raises many questions in our head; we wonder how they achieve success in early ages? Where their knowledge comes from? How can I become one of them? Since ancient times until nowadays we hear about young people or scholars making discoveries useful for humankind and often we ask ourselves how come he/she is genius and invents things? And many other endless questions we wonder every time. This is an issue scholar are studying for many years, some conclusions are made but still a lot remains to be discovered.

US is one of the first countries investing in this realm, and a definition for gifted and talented children was formulated in 1988 by USA Congress, who defines gifted and talented children *as:* "*The term* "gifted and talented" means children and youth who give evidence of high-performance capability in areas such as intellectual, creative, artistic or leadership capacity, or in specific academic fields. "¹The second definition from USA state organs comes in 1993, when the Department of Education defines giftedness as: "Children and youth with outstanding talent who perform or show the potential for performing at remarkably high levels of accomplishment when compared with others of their age, experience, or environment." (US Department of Education/OERI pg.26). The second definition given by Ministry of Education in US is most comprehensive and used by the greatest number of schools in US.

Furthermore, other associations working on the same issue have given different definitions. One important association and with great influence might be considered National Association for Gifted Children (NAGC) which defines gifted children as:

"Gifted individuals are those who demonstrate outstanding levels of aptitude (defined as an exceptional ability to reason and learn) or competence (documented performance or achievement in top 10% or rarer) in one or more domains. Domains include any structured

area of activity with its own symbol system (e.g., mathematics, music, language) and/or set of sensorimotor skills (e.g., painting, dance, sports. "²

The main goal of this research is to contribute on identification of gifted and talented children in earlier age, like primary classes, their characteristics, finding out their needs and the way how their needs are going to be fulfilled by teachers, who in closer cooperation with parents will nurture children's needs and give the opportunity to these group of children to excel in the realm they are gifted.

The well-known American development psychologist Howard Gardner, on 1983 presented his theory of for multiple intelligences (MI). From seven intelligences identified by Gardner, one of the intelligences is language intelligence. Although giftedness comprises many talents in different realms and it's a wide field, this research will be conducted for Language Learning, specifically on the English language which nowadays is thewidely used for communication. People talented in this category of intelligence, are described byGardner as people who display facility with words and languages in general, who are able to learn new words easily, read, write and tell stories, also they have verbal memory and are able to manipulate with syntax and structure, which means they are able to create sentences easily than students with other intelligence. Next chapters will describe in more details the characteristics, needs and the way how to incrementthis talent.

The hope with this research is to provide help and contribute for this group of children to be treated particularly in school by providing special courses and adequately trained teachers, who have the knowledge and capacity to help excel in the specific realm and express their knowledge without hesitation.

1.2 Research Aims

This research aims to raise the awareness of the institutions, including Ministry of Education, educatorswho work everyday with children and future coming generation of teachers, in particularhave to be mentioned theparents, who need to be awarefor theirchildren' intelligences, and contribution given to help them develop that intelligence. According to the researches made in Macedonia, the field of talented and gifted children has not been explored. If there was identified a student with giftedness or talent, the only contribution for these students was passing them one year before their age, which means if the student was fourth grade the teacher in accordance with the principal would recommend and decide that he is talented, they would exceed fifth grade, directly continuing to the sixth grade. That's why this research aims to be useful to every teacher, in

particular to English language teachers, by providing teaching methods that would be of great use, in order to reinforce gifted students capacity in the proper way.

The research will be carried out in three major cities of Republic of Macedonia, in seven elementary schools, which are: Elementary school "NikollaVapcarov"- Skopje, Elementary school "HasanPrishtina" -Skopje, Elementary school "Yahya Kemal" – Skopje, Elementary school "Tefeyyuz" - Skopje. One school in the city of Tetovo which is an Elementary school "Istikbal" - Tetovo. Two elementary schools in the city of Gostivar which are the Elementary school "Bashkimi"– Gostivar and the Elementary school "Ismail Qemali" – Gostivar. The research was carried out in public and private schools.

The instruments used were questionnaires, interviews, and class observation. Interviews were made with teachers and it is expected to gather information about learning strategies, the treatment of talented children and how their talent is being nurtured. Questions from the questionnaires were answered from four parents and it aims to understand how their child learns best and what are the difficulties they face most of the time during learning. The third instrument was class observation which took place in three elementary classes in Skopje, pupils were first and second graders, and class duration was 45minute. The information gathered focused more on learning strategies teachers use in class, whether there is given a special treatment to gifted and talented children or they are treated as every child in the class, how teachers' qualities affected students attitude toward the subject and students feedback toward strategies used while teaching.

1.3 Research objectives:

- a. To find out methods of identification of gifted and talented students in English language classrooms
- b. To understand a student's emotional and social needs
- c. To find out teaching methods to be used in order to produce better results
- d. To find out teachers' teaching method used during teaching gifted and talented students

1.4 Description of thesis organization

Chapter I will provide the readers with general information about gifted and talented issues, who are gifted and talented children, definitions from world associations and author, and main questions this research aims. This chapter is made of from the introductory part, research aims and the objectives of this thesis.

Chapter II discusses the literature used on this subject, there have been mentioned the main authors who have made the first steps in this area and their thesis are presented. The history of gifted and talented education is explained from where it started and how was developed giftedness. Gifted children characteristics and the newest methods of identification are presented in a detailed way.

Chapter III defines the methodology how the research will be performed, for the reader there are explained in details the main purpose of this research, the hypothesis and there will be given adetailed overview of who the participants will be and the instruments used in order to have accurate outcome.

Chapter IVin this chapter will be objectively displayed the results taken from the three instruments. The outcomes from the three instruments, teachers' interviews, parent's questionnaires and the observation in classes, used in this research will be analyzed and the findings will be explained.

Chapter Vin this chapter will be provided the conclusion and recommendation as part of the thesis, the limitations faced during the research and what to be taken into consideration for this area.

CHAPTER II

2.1 Theoretical Background

Identifying gifted and talented students in early ages is one important step ahead at the same time, the most difficult. Most of us think that being talented the IQ should be above 130 but there are many theories regarding this issue. Instead of measuring and beating children with IQ test, scientist, psychologist and pedagogues made studies and surveys from different point of views,to come to a conclusion that IQ score is not definite evidence for intelligence or giftedness. There are children who have not higher IQ scores but are very good in one particular subject. In the text below, major theories from researchers in the area of giftedness and talent, their definition and argumentswill be presented.

2.1.1 Three Ring Conception of Giftedness - Joseph Renzulli,

The well-known psychologist Joseph Renzulli who is author of many published books with researches for gifted and talented students, in 1978 developed a definition regarding giftedness called a three-ring model of giftedness, as an interaction of the three human characteristics which are: Above average ability, a high level of task commitment and high level of creativity.



Figure 1 – Three ring model of Giftedness by Joseph Renzulli,

According to Renzulli the first trait in the above average ability can be defined in two ways. The first way is general ability which consists of traits that can be applied across all domains (e.g., general intelligence) or broad domains (e.g., general verbal ability applied to several dimensions of the language arts). These abilities consist of the capacity to process information, to integrate experiences that result in appropriate and adaptive responses to new situations, and the capacity to engage in abstract thinking. Examples of general ability are verbal and numerical reasoning, spatial relations, memory, and word fluency. These abilities are usually measured by tests of general aptitude or intelligence and are broadly applicable to a variety of traditional learning situations. The second one is specific abilitywhich consists of the capacity to acquire knowledge, skill or the ability to perform in one or more activities, within a restricted range. Examples of specific abilities are chemistry, ballet, mathematics, musical composition, sculpture, and photography. All specific abilities can be further subdivided into even more specific areas (e.g., portrait photography, astrophotography, etc.) (Renzulli, 1978).

The second trait, found in creative-productive persons is a refined or focused form of motivation that it is called task commitment. Whereas motivation is usually defined in terms of a general energizing process that triggers responses in organisms, task commitment represents energy brought to bear on a particular problem (task) or specific performance area. The terms that are most frequently used to describe task commitment are perseverance, endurance, hard work, dedicated

practice, self-confidence, a belief in one's ability to carry out important work, and action applied to one's area(s) of interest. (Renzulli, 1978).

The third trait that characterizes gifted persons consists of factors usually lumped together under the general heading of "creativity." As one reviews the literature in this area, it becomes already apparent that the words gifted, genius, and eminent creators or highly creative persons are used synonymously. In many of the research projects discussed above, the persons ultimately selected for intensive study were in fact recognized because of their creative accomplishments (Renzulli, 1978).

2.1.2 Triarchic Theory of Intelligence- Robert Sternberg 1980

Robert Sternberg a psychology professor, who after many researches in educational psychology, in 1980 came up with the theory on intelligence named Triarchic Theory. According to Sternberg, there are three types of intelligence a person can have, which are practical intelligence (contextual), creative intelligence (experimental) and analytical intelligence (componential).

Practical intelligence or otherwise called contextual, focuses on shaping and reaction to the environment, the ability to adapt or change it according to your needs. Practical intelligence is the ability to thrive in the real world. You might compare practical intelligence to common sense or street smart. It involves the ability to understand how to deal with everyday tasks. If you were analyzing someone's level of practical intelligence, you might ask yourself questions like: How does this person relate to the world around them? Are they adept at dealing with everyday experiences? Could someone take advantage of this person easily?(Sternberg 1980).

Creative intelligence relates to the way a person approaches new information or a new task. You may also hear creative intelligence referred to as experiential intelligence. It involves a person's ability to apply their existing knowledge to new problems. If you were assessing a person's level of creative intelligence, you might ask questions like: How quickly can this person solve a new problem when presented with it? Can they automatically apply a new skill when they're presented with the problem again? There are two categories of creative intelligence: novelty and automatization. Novelty concerns how a person reacts the first time they encounter something new, whereasAutomatization concerns how a person learns to perform repeated tasks automatically. (Sternberg 1980).

The last type but not least, the analytical intelligence which relates to the way how a person analyses and processes the information they receive. This form of intelligence is more in terms of traditional IQ and academic achievements. These people are able to see the solution from different point of view; they are very good at evaluation, assessing critiquing and comparing. Because of their analytical abilities and abstract thinking, they are very successful in standardizedtests.

2.1.3 Purdue Three-Stage model - John Feldhusen (1974)

The developer of this model for gifted and talented students is John Feldhusen, Kathryn Linden and Russel Ames. In this model, the most important is the movement of the students from beginner to practitioners, through three stages. This model begins with basic levels of knowledge by continuing with applying that knowledge and skills and ends by solving real-life problems. It has components that create an appropriately challenging learning environment for gifted and talented students. The audience could be elementary schools, secondary and higher education. The strengths in this model are interaction with other gifted children, highly trained teachers, and appropriate challenges for all students, easily implemented and it has a low cost, as weaknesses might be considered disruption of regular classroom routines, need of lots of recourses and a call for highly qualified teachers.

	STAGE I	STAGE	II	STAGE III
GOALS	Master of core content	• Master	of core content	Apply knowledge to
	and skills	and ski	lls	real problems
•	Enhanced divergent and	• Enhanc	ed complex	Function as a
	convergent thinking skills	probler	n-solving	professional in the
		abilitie	s	talent area
			•	Develop real products
				to share with real
				audiences
ACTIVITIES •	Reading assignments	• Master	core content •	Self-directed inquiry
	that help develop a rich	and ski	lls •	Self-directed creative
	know ledge base in the	• Shared	inquiry	production
	content area	• Discov	ery learning	Independent (individua
-	Lectures, movies, guest	• Creativ	e problem	or small-group project
	speakers	solving	5	
	T	Small-		
•	Learning centers	• group		
-	Individual	discuss	ions	
	instructional packets	• Structu	red assignments	
•	Diagnostic-prescriptive	requirin	ng higher-level	
	instruction in specific	thinkin	g	
	skills			
-	Short-term, teacher-led,			
	creative thinking			
	activities			
	(e.g., brainstorming,			
	divergent questioning)			
ROLE OF •	Lead the class	• Design	the learning •	Serve as a resource
THE		enviror	nmen	person for the students
		t		person for the students
TEACHER		• Facilita	te learning	
		expens	es	
ROLE OF •	Master core content and	• Take in	nitiative Work	Make appropriate
THE	skills; apply higher level	coopera	atively with	choices
STUDENTS	creative and critical	others]	Develop and	Develop goals

thinking skills		share insightful and	•	Develop a realistic plan
		original ideas		to achieve those goals
	•	Demonstrate task	•	Carry out the plan
		commitmet	•	Secure appropriate
				resources and mentors
			•	Transform knowledge

Table 1 - The Purdue Three Stage Model, John Feldhusen 1974

According to the table, this theory is divided into three stages which will be explained in more details below:

Stage 1 – begins with the instruction of activities to teach basic skills of thinking and academic content. As activities are stated reading assignments, lectures, movies, brainstorming etc. Teacher provides a balanced emphasis on developing divergent and convergent thinking skills. The teacher's role is mostly to lead the class through these activities and maintain balance. The role of students is to apply a higher level of creative and critical thinking skills. Activities should be highly motivating for students to make them want to explore the content of the unit in greater depth during the following stages.

Stage 2 – the main goal is to enhance complex problem-solving abilities. Appropriate activities in this stage are shared inquiry, discovery learning, small group discussion, and anassignment which requires a higher level of thinking est. activities in this stage last longer than in the first stage. The teacher in is the one who should take initiative and be more cooperative with students by sharing creative and original ides.

Stage 3– in this stage will be applied the knowledge gained in previous stages to real life problems. Students should function as professionals in the selected area, develop the real products and share them with a real audience. Students work as independent individuals or in small groups. They should make appropriate choices, develop their goals and make a plan how to achieve them. Teacher's role in this stage is more as a resource person for students.

2.1.4 Theory of Multiple Intelligences - Howard Gardner (1983)

Howard Gardner as awell-known professor of cognition and education, on 1983 conceives a new theory on giftedness which became very popular and contributed to widening the traditional notion of intelligence. On the book named *Frames of Mind: the Theory of Multiple Intelligences,* he claims that intelligence can be expressed in multiple ways, intelligence is not only one way and general which was known as IQ, but there are eight types of intelligence. The types of intelligence are:

Bodily-kinesthetic – people with this intelligence use their body with great ease, they like physical activities. People who are intelligent in this section can be seen as successful dancers or athletes.

Musical – this is a special intelligence which one person can have it since birth or hardly gained through time. People with this intelligence have a great voice or they are able to reproduce the song in the same way. Also remembering every sound and text of the songs makes them reveal their intelligence.

Interpersonal - people who understand and are very communicative with others. They learn through interaction, group activities, and debates. With this intelligence, we can see teachers, social workers, actors or politicians. During high school, we can see them as leaders in class or among their peers.

Intrapersonal- independent learners, they are motivated when alone, characterized with a strong will and sustainable on their opinions and attitudes. Most of thewell-known psychologist, spiritual leader and philosopher have this intelligence.

Linguistic – highly developed writing and speaking skills. They like writing, reading, telling stories, puzzles, and stories. Using new words in their speeches is a challenge and satisfaction.

Logical-Mathematical intelligence - People with this intelligence mostly are able with numbers, abstraction, and critical thinking. They like logic games, puzzles, and mysteries.

Spatial intelligence – it is an ability to recognize and manipulate large-scale or threedimensional images or shapes, excellent performance in the domain of architecture or sculpture or geometry, figuring out maps or constructions projects.

Naturalist intelligence - nature smart people are easily directed and orientated on different unknown spaces. These are individuals, who are able to identify and distinguish among products of the natural world such as animals, plants, types of rocks, and weather patterns (Gardner, 1999). They can easily understand the environment and mostly we can see them as sailors, meteorologist, botanist or zoologist.

Existential intelligence - Gardner (2006) introduced a new intelligence which is existential intelligence. It reflects an individual's capacity for considering 'big questions' about life, death, love, and being. Individuals with this intelligence could be found in philosophy departments, religious seminaries, or the ateliers of artists.

2.2 HISTORY OF GIFTED AND TALENTED EDUCATION

Education of gifted and talented children is old as it is the human being. If we look back in history we can see that people, scholars or different governing systems expressed great interest in children or younger adult who showed a special talent in any area. In this research, the history of education of gifted and talented children will be described only from the last century, for the concrete steps the governments have implemented.

The first official and special school is opened in Massachusetts in 1901, whereas the first test for identification of gifted and talented children is made by French researchers Binet and Simon in 1905. The aim of these tests was to separate gifted children from other children who function normally in the classroom. Harry Goddard associate of Binet translated the tests in English and gave them to American educators and psychologists. The 'father' of gifted education was Lewis Terman who published Binet's test in 1916, by which it was changed the intelligence testing forever, including the American education.

The first class with gifted and talented students was held in 1922 by Leta S. Hollingworth in New York City. From this class emerged many articles, textbooks, and blueprints. Leta Hollingworth wrote the first comprehensive text on the gifted after many years of research in her class with her students. Even though the office of the Gifted and Talented existed it was not official until 1974 when it was given a social status within the Office of education in the US.

Jacob Javits Act of 1988 is the main occurrence in the movement of gifted and talented education. Javits act aimed to provide national direction in identifying gifted and talented students. It included three main components: the possibility of funding researches on effective methods of testing, identification, and placement. All the process will be performed by establishing a new national center for research and a unit under the Department of Education. As a result in 1990, it was established National Research Center on Gifted and Talented with the aim to provide researches and practices in gifted education. Members of this center were researchers from the best universities of USA as from the University of Virginia, Yale, and Georgia. On 2002, the USA Congress passed the famous No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB) as a reauthorization of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act. With this act, Javits' program was included and the definition of Gifted and talentedstudentswas modified where it states that:

"Students, children and youth who give evidence of high achievements capability in areas such as intellectual, creative, artistic or leadership or in specific academic fields and who need services and activities not ordinarily provided by the school in order to fully develop those capabilities" (NCLB Act 2002).³

After this act it seems that gifted and talented children education is completed but teachers, organizations and researchers are working every day to improve the material used in teaching gifted children, their needs from different point of views and what should be improved. Furthermore, NAGC in 2006 published standards which teachers should fulfill in order to teach gifted and talented students. These standards included preparation programs, knowledge and skills which teachers had to possess in order to be professionals and have more success in educating gifted and talented students.

2.3 Definition of Gifted and Talented Children

The professional literature presented a multitude of definitions on giftedness andtalent, but no one of them is universally accepted (Davis &Rimm, 1998). Many authors use different terms as "gifted" and "talented", others go beyond where seems there are degrees of giftedness which complicates the issue even more. Terms as "able learners" instead of "gifted" was used by Daniel and Boston (1985), or Renzulli and Reis (1999) who preferred to use the term "gifted behavior" championed the phrase "gifted behaviors" which can be nurtured in certain students under certain circumstances, and does not result in the dichotomy of "gifted" and "not gifted" as the result of an identification process (Carlson 2004).

During the last half of the past century, there has been aspiration broadening definition by including abilities and multiple factors. This broadening process started by the federal definition from 1971, 1978 also 1988. The most definitions for "gifted and talented" derive from the US office of Education definition (Marland, 1971) which claims:

"Gifted and talented children are those identified by professionally qualified persons who by virtue of outstanding abilities are capable of high performance. These are children who require differentiated educational programs and/or services beyond those normally provided by the regular school program in order to realize their contribution to self and society. Children capable of high performance include those with demonstrated achievement and/or potential ability in any of the following areas, single or in combination:

1. general intellectual ability

- 2. specific academic aptitude
- 3. creative or productive thinking
- *4. leadership ability*
- 5. visual and performing arts
- 6. psychomotor ability. "⁴

US Congress in 1978 revised the Marlands' definition and came to the conclusion that the last category "psychomotor ability", should be removed from areas of giftedness. First, it was thought that artistic psychomotor abilities could be included in the "performing arts" category, and second, it was felt that athletic programs were already well-funded and provided for outside of gifted and talented programs (Pendarvis, Howley, &Howley, 1990).

The federal definition witnessed one more change where it was shortened and emerge as follows:

The term 'gifted and talented students' means children and youth who give evidence of high-performance capability in areas such as intellectual, creative, artistic, or leadership capacity, or in specific academic fields, and who require services or activities not ordinarily provided by the school in order to fully develop such capabilities.⁵

In an effort to expand upon the federal definition of giftedness and talent, JosephRenzulli (1978) proposed an alternate definition of giftedness, based upon descriptions of creatively productive people, mostly adults, who had made great contributions to society. Citing the failure of federal definitions to take into consideration motivational factors, as well as the nonparallel nature of the categories of giftedness, he distinguishedbetween "fields of human endeavor" (e.g. specific academic aptitudes) and "processesthat may be brought to bear on performance areas" (e.g. creativity) (Renzulli 1978, p. 181). He argued that these processes could not exist independently from performance areas to which they can be applied.

2.3.1 Giftedness vs. talent

The terms gifted and talented have been confusing for many scholars, teachers and parents, they find it hard until nowadays. Since we use both terms jointly most of the time, it is hard to distinguish which word stands for what. If we differentiate both terms we would have giftedness as the definition of high intelligence or ability, and talent which is related to high performance in areas as music, dance or art. In the 1990's the term "talented" often was replaced with "gifted". Authors who worked in this issue tried to make the difference between these two terms and some of the definitions will be cited below. Winstanley (2004) and Freeman (2000) in their written work commented the term "gifted" as a word with the religious overtone of gifts by God. According to Winstanley this also comprehends a moral connotation with being gifted (pg. 7).

Gagne (1991) presenting his Differentiated Model of Giftedness and Talent, explained his own theory on the differences between giftedness and talent, and his explanation states as below:

"GIFTEDNESS designates the possession and use of untrained and spontaneously expressed superior natural abilities (called aptitudes or gifts), in at least one ability domain, to a degree that places an individual at least among the top 10% of his or her age peers. TALENT designates the superior mastery of systematically developed abilities (or skills) and knowledge in at least one field of human activity to a degree that places an individual within at least the upper 10% of age peers who are or have been active in that field or fields."(pg.1)⁶

All the theories depend on the researches scholars have done. It doesn't exist only one theory or only one way to differ both terms. As revealed by Joan Freeman, on the report for Department of Education and Skills, in London, he cast a new theory on the differences between gifted and talent. In his theory he states that:

Gifts are taken here to mean the more easily measurable intellectual aspects of development, such as high-level school achievement and IQ, whereas talents are the less easily measurable aspects such as the arts and sport, normally discovered by experts in those fields. (Freeman 2002,pg 1)

Subsequently, the explanation by John Munro, in my opinion is comprehensible and coherent, it defines the distinction between talent and giftedness according to the efforts they put on the particular subject, in comparison with the results they achieve. His theory states as below:

"Talented students as displaying exceptional ability in areas in which they have been explicitly taught, and gifted students are those who display exceptional ability in certain areas without explicit teaching." (Munro, 2001, pg. 7).⁷

2.3.2 Myths and Stereotypes for Gifted and Talented Children

All myths evolve from some set of beliefs or some interpretation of unexplainable phenomena. Although it can never be found the origin of myths, it can be speculated that a particular myth has evolved through a distortion of some fundamentally sound and widely-accepted axioms in gifted education (Callahan 1982). Even though there are still stereotypes and myths that are generally believed, but researchers made in this realm confirm the opposite. Furthermore, myths and stereotypes taken from ABC Ontario website, National Association for Gifted Children and Dublin School District website, which have proven the opposite, will be listed below.

-Gifted Students don'tneedhelp; They'll Do Fine On Their Own⁸

-Teachers Challenge All the Students, So Gifted Kids Will Be Fine In the Regular Classroom⁹

-Gifted Education Programs Are Elitist

-Gifted Students Are Happy, Popular, and Well Adjusted In School¹⁰

-Gifted students have no emotional difficulties.

-Gifted students will be successful whether or not they receive special attention.¹¹

-Gifted students are successful in school.

-Gifted students with the same I.Q. have similar interests and abilities

-Gifted students are viewed as a homogeneous group where all are high achievers.

-Many people think that gifted students never need help; if they are truly gifted they are able to manage on their own every situation.

-It is thought that gifted students always have fewer problems comparing others because their intelligence and abilities help them solve easily everyday issues.

-Gifted students don't have to be concerned about their future because it is assured. A world of opportunities lies before them.

-Thinking that their social and emotional development is at the same level as their intellectual development, is proved wrong.

-Gifted students are socially isolated students.

-The greatest value of the gifted student is in his brain power.

-Gifted students always need to be taken as examples for others and they should presume extra responsibility.

-Gifted students make everyone around them smarter.

-Gifted students can achieve and accomplish any issue they put in their minds to.

-Gifted students are highly creative and they do not need for extra encouragement.

-Gifted children are easy to be raised by parents and every class would love to have them.

2.4 Social and emotional development of gifted students

A graduate teacher in gifted and creative education in qualitative research methods, shares his researches and findings with us through his work. According to Hebert educating the gifted and talented child is a different experience, asking for more attention and commitment in order to succeed. Parents in cooperation with educators by knowing the emotional needs and traits of these special children can get the best from them. The author treated the social and emotional lives of gifted students, how they feel for particular issues, are their emotions stronger than their peers might experience. The main traits encountered at the students he worked with, he explained them in his

award-winning book Understanding the Social and Emotional Lives of Gifted Students, traits which will be listed as follows:

High expectations of self and others around or perfectionism-according to the author, whether a blessing or misfortune it differs from each student, but there is a general compliance that perfectionism is a crucial issue to giftedness. Gifted and talented children are the ones who suffer more than other children and the issue among educators and psychologists is whether this trait is positive that should be nurtured or a problem which should be treated and cured (Hebert, 2010). Hewit and Flett (1991) added one more issue in order to explain perfectionism, it was proposed a model to explicate and understand gifted children and the trait of perfectionism as multidimensional. There is subdivided in a *self-oriented* perfectionist, where the child is oriented on himself to be perfect in every aspect and finds it hard to accept his mistakes. These children have created high standards and measure every step they do according to those standards. *Other-oriented* perfectionists are children who have created high standards regarding others and expect from others to fulfill those standards. The last group is *socially prescribed perfectionist*, in this group are counted those children who are doing those things that are being expected from the society to do. Reaching perfectionism can be painful and it is seen as a double-edged sword, the great desire to do the best and the fear of not doing the best.

Internal motivation (inner locus of control) – explains the relationship between someone's behavior and the outcomes of that behavior (Rotter, 1966). The will to control or having responsibility for the events in life displays the internal locus of control. According to researchers in the Gifted and talented area, this trait is often encountered among gifted students. In other words, this is known as the inner will, the will to achieve a goal regardless of the quantity of the material needed to be learned or the danger of attaining the determined goal.

Emotional sensitivity, intensity and depth- these traits are the inward feeling that characterizes most children, but the intensity of these feelings at gifted and talented children is greater. Sensitive children have greater passion and compassion toward things and others around. They find it hard to see someone suffering and not being able to help, this is the emotion they most of the time have, not being able to forgive themselves in case they hurt someone's feelings.

Empathy-the question of why people help others is being examined for years. Empathy is formally defined as "other-oriented emotional response elicited by and congruent with the perceived welfare of someone else" (Batson, Ahmad, Lishner& Tsang, 2002, p.485). Empathic emotions as sympathy, soft-heartedness, and compassion are surfacing when another person is thought to be in need.

Advanced levels of moral maturity-it is a characteristic of gifted children where often we can encounter situations when there is a possibility to give up anything they might think It is harmful to the society. These children have their principles and ideals of what is right and what is wrong, by which they act according to their attitudes. *Stronger needs for self-actualization* - many researchers of psychology have found out that the need for self-actualization is stronger at gifted children rather than non-gifted children.

Highly developed sense of humor- it is very important trait of someone's identity especially if they are able to laugh at themselves (Web, Meckstroth ,Tolan 1982).

Resilience- is defined as "*ability to achieve emotional health and social competence in spite* of a history of adversity or stress" (Neihart, 2002; Werner & Smith, 1982, pg.5)¹². Resilient children share traits as intelligent, curios, positive explanatory style, problem-solving ability, confidenceand a sense of humor. (Hebert 2010).

2.5 Characteristics of Gifted and Talented Children

Those who advocate for differentiated counseling for gifted and talented students, that their counselbase upon the general characteristics of these children, as well aspertinent needs and issues that arise from their giftedness and talent. However, it must bekept in mind that gifted and talented children, like all children, are not a homogeneousgroup. There are many individual differences among the gifted and talented, and each is aunique individual with needs that cannot be satisfied through a single administrativeadjustment (NAGC, 2003). The more gifted and talented the student, the fewergeneralizations about the gifted and talented may apply (VanTassel-Baska, 1997).

Furthermore, on the early years of 1960s, Thom and Newell (1965), in acited statement, observed that "*extremely high intelligence is as far from normal as is a mental deficiency and creates problems of its own that may be as acute*" (p. 354).

Brown (1993) states that gifted and talented children were more different than theywere alike. Any counseling approach must be sure to consider individual differencesamong the gifted and talented (VanTassel-Baska, 1990).

2.5.1 General characteristics

On behalf of the characteristics of the gifted children, it is hard to make a distinction between high achiever and gifted learner. According to Bertie Kingore in her book *Differentiation: Simplified, realistic and Effective,* there is a list made listing general characteristics of gifted learners and high achievers.

unforeseen questions ious ctively mentally engaged ates complex, abstract ideas s without working hard rs with depth and multiple perspectives ond the group its feelings and opinions from multiple
ious ctively mentally engaged ates complex, abstract ideas s without working hard rs with depth and multiple perspectives ond the group
ctively mentally engaged ates complex, abstract ideas s without working hard rs with depth and multiple perspectives ond the group
ates complex, abstract ideas s without working hard rs with depth and multiple perspectives ond the group
s without working hard rs with depth and multiple perspectives ond the group
rs with depth and multiple perspectives ond the group
ond the group
its feelings and opinions from multiple
ectives
ty knows
one to three repetitions to master
rehends in-depth complex ideas
rs the company of intellectual peers
ed complex, abstract humor
and connects concepts
es project and extensions of
ments
nse
tinal and continually developing
s self-directed learning
ulates information
expert who abstracts beyond the field
es and infers well
pates and relates observations
critical
critical ot be motivated by grades

Table 2 - Characteristics of High Achievers and Gifted learners by Bertie Kingore, 2004

Their characteristics are similar when they face with environment and problems in everyday life including school, friends or culture. The table below emphasizes intellectual characteristics of gifted and talented children. Personal attributes are an important indicator to be analyzed also.

Characteristics Common to Gifted Children				
Strengths	Possible Problems			
Acquires/retains information quickly	Impatient with others; dislikes basic routine.			
Inquisitive; searches for significance.	Asks embarrassing questions; excessive in interests.			
Intrinsic motivation	Strong-willed; resists direction			
Enjoys problem-solving; able to	Resists routine practice; questions teaching			
conceptualize, abstract, synthesize.	procedures.			
Seeks cause-effect relations	Dislikes unclear/illogical areas (e.g., traditions or feelings)			
Emphasizes truth, equity, and fair play.	Worries about humanitarian concerns			
Seeks to organize things and people	Constructs complicated rules; often seen as bossy			
Large facile vocabulary; advanced, broad	May use words to manipulate; bored with			
information	school and age-peers			
High expectations of self and others	Intolerant, perfectionistic; may become depressed.			
Creative/inventive; likes new ways of doing things	May be seen as disruptive and out of step			
Intense concentration; long attention span	Neglects duties or people during periods of			
and persistence in areas of interest.	focus; resists interruption; stubbornness			
Sensitivity, empathy; desire to be accepted by others	Sensitivity to criticism or peer rejection			
High energy, alertness, eagerness.	Frustration with inactivity; may be seen as hyperactive.			
Independent; prefers individualized work;	May reject parent or peer input;			
reliant on self.	nonconformity			
Diverse interests and abilities; versatility	May appear disorganized or scattered;			

	frustrated over lack of time				
Strong sense of humor	Peers	may	misunderstand	humor;	may
	become "class clown" for attention				

Table 3 – Characteristics Common to Gifted Children by Clark (1992)

Another very popular and similar list in content which is often cited nowadays is the list of May Seagoe from the University of California at Los Angeles. May Seagoe according to her observations on the gifted learners, has noticed the characteristics they mostly have are as listed below:

1. Keen power of observation;	naive receptivity; sense of the significant;
	willingness to examine the unusual
2. Power of abstraction,	conceptualization, synthesis; interest in inductive
	learning and problem solving; pleasure in
	intellectual activity
2 Interest in aguse affect velocions	ability to goo valationships, interest in
3. Interest in cause-effect relations,	ability to see relationships; interest in applying concepts; love of truth
	apprying concepts, love of train
4. Liking for structure and order	liking for consistency, as in value systems,
	number systems, clocks, calendars
5. Retentiveness	
6. Verbal proficiency	large vocabulary; facility in expression; interest in
	reading; breadth of information in advanced areas
	intellectual curiosity, inquisitive mind; intrinsic
7. Questioning attitude	motivation
	skepticism, evaluative testing; self-criticism and
8. Power of critical thinking;	skepicism, evaluative testing, self-criticism and self-checking
o. 1 ower of ertileat minimiz,	seij encennitz

9. Creativeness and inventiveness	liking for new ways of doing things; interest in creating; brainstorming, free-wheeling
10. Power of concentration	intense attention that excludes all else; long attention span
11. Persistent	goal-directed behavior
12. Sensitivity intuitiveness, empathy for others	need for emotional support and a sympathetic attitude
13. High energy, alertness, eagerness;	periods of intense voluntary effort preceding invention
14. Independence in work and study;	preference for individualized work; self-reliance; need for freedom of movement and action
15. Versatility and virtuosity; 16. Friendliness and outgoingness	diversity of interests and abilities; many hobbies; proficiency in art forms such as music and drawing

Table 4 - Learning Characteristics of Gifted Students, May Seagoe, 1974

The National Association for Gifted Children in 2003 provided a general description of the characteristics of gifted learners but in different areas of giftedness. In this list are included leadership, visual art, creative thinking and specific abilities in academic areas.

Some of the children's characteristics who express giftedness in leadership include selfconfidence, great organization skills, good judgment in decision making, ability to express them fluently and concise, highexpectations for themselves and others around them, and a willingness to assume responsibility. Characteristics of children who express giftedness in creative thinking include original thinking in oral and written expression, independent thinking, a specific sense of humor, an ability find many solutions to a given problem, they are able to improvise often, and accepting themselves of being different from the crowd.

Expressing giftedness in visual/performing artsinclude asense of spatial relationships, expressing their feelings in an unusual way through art, drama, music or dance, a desire for producing their own product rather than just copying.

At those where can be detected characteristics in giftedness in the specificacademic area include great memorization ability, advanced skills in comprehension, the ability to acquire basic skills and knowledge very quickly, high academic success in the area of their interest, and a great enthusiasm when pursuing this interest. Mostly these students are successful in areas as science, language art, math, art, music, athletic, dance or social studies. (Alberty, 1959).

2.5.2 Individual Characteristics

According to scholars in giftedness, Bets and Neihart the gifted students can be grouped into six categories, which will be summarized below.

Successful gifted – these students are well known for their talents in the school, high achievers, perfectionist, and eager others to approve them that they are right in every issue but they avoid taking risks. The challenging gifted – students who love a challenge, they are very creative but do not like to follow the orders or school system. They get easily bored, frustrated even rebellious, also question and challenge every rule or authority they face. The underground gifted – the group at risk of not being identified as gifted. Students in this group are very shy, quiet and insecure in their abilities. Often they deny what they know in order to fit in. The dropout gifted – having the feeling that the system does not meet their needs makes these students resentful and angry. They can express their displeasure by being disruptive or withdrawn, most of the time they can be seen alone. Also, fail to complete schoolwork and the level of their achievement falls below their ability. The double *labeled* – these are students with giftedness but also with a disability. Often people fail to see past their disability which means their giftedness stays unrecognized. Having a physical or sensory disability makes them angry and fails to express the gift they have. The autonomous gifted - students in this group often achieve what they aim to. They have a high level of confidence, are independent and self-directed. Also being highly motivated and able to take risks to make them be viewed as an example for most students. (Bets and Neihart, 1988)

Another important group worth mentioning and suggested by Bevan and Brown whom they considered as the addition of the previously mentioned groups, or as the seventh category in this list

which is *Culturally Diverse Gifted* – here belong those students who are rarely identified for any exceptional ability. Their performances are affected by low self-esteem which makes them rarely be identified as gifted. The cultural background they have can discourage them from displaying their skills. (Bevan and Brown 1999).

2.6 Identification of Gifted and Talented Children

The category of gifted and talented students may represent a wide spectrum of students with different abilities. There are students with great abilities in math or in science others in learning foreign languages or art. After Gardner's (1983) theory it is accepted that gifted and talented are not only those students who have high intelligence or IQ. Identifying ELLs is one the toughest process because needs a special attention from parents and teachers during class. For the children to express their knowledge there are needed major efforts and if it doesn't get noticed from the teacher the efforts are wasted.

Identification process needs more time, surveillance, observation and a lot of attention. Identifying a child should start in the early ages, during the early childhood or elementary classes. Teachers' role in this age is important because of the developing of children abilities and interests. The teacher should be cautious of what the children's interests are in order to develop them through challenging experiences in the learning environment. Identification is an ongoing process. Children's abilities, interests or personalities continuously change, in this case, teachers should be aware of what ability or interest will emerge.

The communication between parent and teacher, in this case, is substantial. There should be communication between, teacher, parent, students, and principal. In this case, if the communication is open and constant, the chances to identify, support and develop a child's talent are much higher.

Identification should be an unpretentious process. The student should feel it as normal as possible in the learning environment. Identification should also be alert for the hidden gifted students or underrepresented groups as ethnic, those whose English language is a second language, underachievers, students who come from a lower socio-economic group or physical disability. Also, particular attention should be dedicated to gender differences.

The process of identification is very complex. Admission in the programs for gifted and talented students there is needed time and tests for the identification process. For Renzulli (2004) the golden rule of identification is – "the careful determination of program goals will set the direction for the entire identification process" (Feldhusen, Asher, Hoover, 1984). The program should have a clear

goal and a specific domain in the area the identification will be. There is not possible to be identified the English Language gifted students in a program that is focused to identify gifted students in music or art.

2.7. Methods of Identification of Gifted Children

2.7.1 Teacher Nomination

One of the most widely used methods of identification. Teachers have the responsibility to nominate their students mostly because they are closely informed and recognized with their ability and capacity. Sadly there is a study made by Peterson and Margolin (1997) where it is found out that teachers often do not refer students with limited English proficiency in programs for Gifted and talented identification. According to Ford (1996), a research points out that teachers mostly nominate those students who are cooperative in class, answer correctly on questions, or those who are punctual, with convenient behavior in mainstream culture. The teachers who nominate students support their appreciation with the help of checklists, students' portfolios, and observation scales.

2.7.2 Parent Nomination

Parents are the most competent in this case to nominate their child. They are closely notified with the knowledge, interest, and skills that can be useful during the identification process. Even though this kind of knowledge is based on the outside world, beyond the classroom, for some programs the child's motivation, attitude, abilities or interests might be relevant. There are also parent interviews which contain questions for child's development during early years, like examples when started to read, language skills, reasoning abilities or intellectual curiosity, characteristics which might be related to giftedness. Nevertheless, there are parents who have a desire for their child to be in one of the programs for gifted and talented; in the questions, they might not be completely honest.

2.7.3 Self-nomination

Self-nomination is a very useful form of identification, even though it happens rarely. For the student to step forward and express all the interest and capacity in one area is difficult. It identifies a special ability such as music, poetry, computer or social concerns. It is most useful tool and common in the secondary level. This brave step forward can influence students' self-esteem, values and

attitude. After students express interest in one area, there is teachers' duty to advance the communication through teacher-students interviews, inventories on the particular subject and questionnaires.

2.7.4 Standardized Tests

Testing is a measurement tool for qualification in a particular subject. Tests are used constantly to provide an objective and systematic way for the identification of gifted and talented children. In standardized tests, there is a fixed subject to be tested. There is a clear direction for the administration, scores, and norms. Tests used for this purpose are ability test and achievement test.

2.7.5 Tests of Intelligence or Ability

Intelligence quotients (IQ) or cognitive abilities are mostly tested and its results are taken into consideration for identification of G&T students. These tests can be individual or group test. In the group of individual tests can be stated: Stanfor-Binet (L-M), Wescher, Intelligence Scale for Children and Woodcock-Johnson. These tests mostly are answered orally in front of a qualified psychologist.

In the group tests, there is a group of students taking place and can be administered by teachers. There is given a test paper with questions and they should write the answers. These tests are appropriate for initial screening but might be unsuitable for many children who face reading difficulties, children from a different ethnic background or very young children. In this group also we can name CogAT Test, Otis-Lennon, Hemmon-Nelson, Ravens Progressive Matrices, and Matrix Analogies Tests.¹³

2.7.6 Tests of Achievement

The achievement tests are used mostly for initial screening, especially in intermediate and secondary school level. It determines what students know already, what they have learned and whether their knowledge is more advanced than their peers. They are specific and in particular academic area ex. math or language art. There are concerns in this test whether it is a useful tool to measure the knowledge since doesn't have enough items to challenge the gifted students, but there are also argumentsthat support this test, stating the inexpensive way of testing, high reliability, and validity. Some of the famous Achievement tests are Torrance Tests of Creative Thinking, Test of Mathematical Abilities for Gifted Students or Screening Assessment for Gifted Elementary Students.¹⁴

In a similar way, as explained previously, Renzulli created another chart for the process of the identification of the gifted and talented children, called identification chart (1982), where he shows specific steps how to identify students with giftedness. The chart is a translation into practice of his' three-ring conception of giftedness.



Figure 2 – Gifted and talented identification system, Joseph Renzulli, 1982

The first step is Test Scores Nomination includes all tests mentioned previously and makes 50 % of the identification process. If the students have high points in all tests, the admission in the program continues. This step enables students who are very good in verbal and nonverbal ability to be admitted in the program. In the areas as art, athletic or leadership there is no need for these tests. They should use no test criteria for their particular talent.

The second step, Teachers Nomination, is helpful for those students who can't express their ability or talent through tests. This allows the teacher to nominate the students for whom they are

35

sure that have the talent and ability, they have observed during the classes, and the specific talent area that is not easy to identify through tests for example high level of creativity, unusual interest or special area for performance, etc. In order the teacher's nomination to be equal with tests scores, it is preferred the teacher to have received proper training.

The third step, Alternate Pathways is considered as a local option. The decision, about which alternate pathways will be used, is made by the local committee. This step generally includes parent nomination, self-nomination, peer-nomination and tests of creativity. What makes this step the third is because of the procedure which continues after the aforementioned nomination and tests, the nomination continues to be reviewed by a screening committee. This committee performs a case study including an examination of school records, reviews with students, parents, and teachers.

Special nomination involves the circulation of the list of students who have been nominated during the first step to the third, from all teachers within the school. In this procedure, the previous teacher is able to nominate students who haven't been nominated by the present teacher. In this step, a final review of the school population is made. The special nomination is not an automatic nomination, a case study is being performed and the final decision is in the hand of the screening committee.

Parent nomination is a step where the parents are being invited to an orientation meeting. Inviting parents with a specific purpose, it is very important for parents to have the knowledge and understand be involved in the identification process and G&T programs. There are being discussed and explained the three-ring conception of giftedness, procedures, and activities.

The last step in this identification chart is Action Information Nominators. In this step the students who are not admitted in the program or are overlooked by the system, it will provide a variety of in-class experiences that could result with recommendations for special services. The process is facilitated by using teacher training activities and an instrument named Action Information Message (Renzulli& Reis, 1985, pp.41-42).
CHAPTER III Research Methodology

3.1 Purpose of the study

In Macedonia, there have been realized manytypes of researches when it comes to language learning and English Language Learners, but very few studies on gifted and talented children on language learning. Identifying the children with giftedness on language learning and nurture their gift, would help them reach their highest potential and ease their social and emotional discrepancies they might feel.

The purpose of this research is to identify and address the needs of gifted and talented children in early ages. Their social and emotional life is far greater than it seems, the needs to be accomplished in order to have successful children are vulnerable and sensitive. According to researchers, from Gardner's list of Multiple Intelligence, language and math, in particular, are considered as major skills. Additionally, parents of gifted and talented children who are gifted in language report that their children began talking earlier than expected (Sutherland 2005).

This research will be of significance to many relevant factors, firstly to parents since they are the first who notices the traits of their child which makes them more responsible for the identification.Of a great benefit, this research will be for educators who work every day with students. It is educators duty to support and help develop talking in their everyday interaction, and activities as retelling stories where gifted English language learners will recount the story sequent and with accurate details, uses adjectives, initiate communication among peers where the conversation will be initiated by the gifted student, interacts and get engaged in conversation, also they are very good listeners and readers, where they remember words and use them appropriately in sentence. The hope is to be undertaken a bigger step in state level from the relevant institution and work on raising the awareness for this small group of children and their special needs.

3.2 Research questions

In an attempt to understand the needs of young gifted and talented English language learners the following questions should be answered:

• How to identify gifted and talented students in English language classrooms?

- How to understand the student's emotional and social needs?
- How to find out which teaching methods to use in order to get the best of our students?
- How educators teach and whether they are using the appropriate teaching strategy for gifted and talented students?

3.3 Research hypothesis

General hypothesis:

The hypothesis of this research is that gifted and talented students in collaboration with teachers who have appropriate education, attention, and use of proper teaching strategies, can nurture and expand children's' intelligence and the highest potential will be reached.

Specific hypothesis:

- Identifying gifted and talented students as early as possible is better and easier for the teacher and parents help to nurturing and consolidates their giftedness.
- Using different teaching strategies in class during teaching gifted students, they will be more focused and actively will participate in the learning process.
- Teachers who have appropriate G&T education and use of proper methods are increasesELL G&T students capacity and self-esteem.
- Smaller Class size gives space to express themselves with ease
- Usage of technology in class while teaching the English Language helps students

3.4 Participants

The participants in this research will be English language teachers and parent of children considered gifted from an English language teacher.

Teachers who were interviewed were from four elementary schools in Skopje, one elementary school in Tetovo and three elementary schools in Gostivar, who will have an interview by answering questions on students' needs and teaching strategies they use in class during the teaching process. The majority of students will belong to Albanian ethnic nationality and Macedonian. The second participant would be parents. They will complete a short questionnaire by answering questions on their children ability to learn easily English language in their early age. The third tool will be class observation.

Parents' cooperation was much lower than teachers; only four parents were ready to be part of this research and answered the questions. The observation took place in three classes, and there was gathered information about learning strategies that teachers use in class, whether there is given a special treatment to gifted and talented children or they are treated as every child in the class.

3.5 Instruments

The instruments used in this research in order to have accurate outcomes will be three: interviews for teachers, class observations and short questionnaires for parents.

Interviews for teacher consists seven questions in order to gather information on whether teacher pay special attention to gifted pupils or they treat them as every pupil in class. The interview was done in eight elementary schools, in three cities of the Republic of Macedonia. The interview started with the school name, the city, teachers' name who is answering the questions. The questions started with the teachers' perceptions and the way they determine the difficulties or students preferences during English language classes are, how they behave when the lesson is familiar to the students, do they continue on the other lesson or they teach it anyway or how they achieve to hold students focus in class. The purpose was to find out whether teachers mostly focus on students who are considered as talented or gifted or they teach according to the curriculum with standard teaching strategies for the whole class.

Questionnaires were designed for parents, who answered eight questions, starting with the first question about the way their child finds easier to learn continuing about the difficulties they face or challenges they have during the academic year in school. The intention of this questionnaire was parents' opinion about whether schools meet the needs of their child and what should be improved in order to have more success and to emerge as gifted and talented student in the English Language. Also, it was intended to understand parents' options he has for his child for advanced education.

The observation was made in three elementary classes in the city of Skopje, chosen randomly and the main focus was to find out the strategies teacher use in class in order to involve all students in the activities. The second issue that was discovered, was the treatment of gifted pupils during the class activities, whether they are treated in a special way, are they participating more actively than others or they are quiet and withdrawn.

In this chapter was given a detailed description of the methodology this research was made, the hypothesis, methodology and design including the instruments and participants as part of the research.

CHAPTER IV

RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

In this chapter will be described in details the process of collecting data and the results gathered through the instruments described above. The interviews, questionnaires, and observation were executed in three cities; seven schools will be presented in the paragraphs below.

4.1 Teacher's interview

4.1.1 Elementary school "NikollaVapcarov" II-b - Skopje

The interview was made on 10.11.2015 in the elementary school "NikollaVapcarov" Skopje. The teacher who answered the questions was a second grade teacher, even though it is hard to define who might be gifted pupil in this early age for the experienced teacher there is always a way to find out. The answers are as listed below:

- How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 When the pupil is more active in one subject it is an indicator that he likes it, when the pupil is quiet or asks several times the same thing it means the subject is not understood.
- Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

I try to change the way of teaching or try to teach some extra things which are not mentioned in the book.

- What tools you use to have child's focus? Translation of simple words, drawings or short questions.
- How will you know the student is making progress? If he grasps the words.
- How is school administration helping most advanced students? The school is trying with the means and possibilities which it has.
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability? Not always. I try to concentrate with everyone during my classes
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

Someone who lags behind others I try to call extra class after normal classes.

4.1.2 Elementary school "HasanPrishtina" II-a – Skopje

The interview was made on 02.12.2015 in the elementary school "HasanPrishtina" Skopje. We had the interview with a second grade teacher, who face difficulties to define the gifted on English language but by explaining some characteristics, the teacher pointed out one of his students. The answers are as listed below:

- How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 By careful, intensive and continuous observance of his/her behavior during lessons and accomplishments in all four language skills.
- Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

I let them be my assistants during the lesson, letting them answer other students questions and help them with any difficulties they face.

- What tools you use to have child's focus?
 Different kinds of techniques, games, songs, quizzes etc.
- How will you know the student is making progress?
 First, by his/her behavior (increased self-confidence) during all his activities.
- How is school administration helping most advanced students?
 By extra curriculum lessons, sending them to different competitions, organizing school quizzes, etc.
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability?
 Sometimes I do, but most of the time I try to help the students who have difficulties in acquiring the knowledge.
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

I divided them into groups: sometimes students with mixed abilities (where more advanced help the less advanced), sometimes the students with same abilities (having different level of exercises, of course.

4.1.3 Elementary school "HasanPrishtina" I-a – Skopje

The interview was made on 02.12.2015 in the elementary school "HasanPrishtina" Skopje. We had the interview with a first grade teacher, defining the gifted on English language at the first grade was even harder and the selection was made by the words in English language pupils know. The answers are as listed below:

- How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 By making questions in different form like: tests, quizzes, speaking and writing activities.
- Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

I will go further by teaching some new material; of course first of all I'll tell them that I'm happy for them.

- What tools you use to have child's focus?It depends on the age, posters, computer cards, colorful papers.
- How will you know the student is making progress?

By giving assessments

• How is school administration helping most advanced students?

They might send them to competitions, choosing the best student of g generation, by awarding them.

- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability? Yes, definitely.
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

I try to give them extra classes.

4.1.4 Elementary school "Tefeyyuz" II-b - Skopje

The interview was made on 04.12.2015 in the elementary school "Tefeyyuz" Skopje. The interview was made with a second grade teacher, who defined the gifted on English language according to the English language words pupils remembers. The answers are as listed below:

How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 I determine by observing him/her during each class.

• Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

I divide the students in groups

- What tools you use to have child's focus? It depends on the child's cognitive abilities.
- How will you know the student is making progress?
 By observing and evaluating him/her during each class and by
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability? Yes.
- How is school administration helping most advanced students?
 It is not doing much except participating in competitions if they are held.
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

By dividing in groups according to their abilities and grouping more advanced with less advanced ones.

4.1.5 Elementary school "Tefeyyuz"I-a – Skopje

The interview was made on 04.12.2015 in the elementary school "Tefeyyuz" Skopje. The interview was made with a first grade teacher, who also defined the gifted on English language according to the English language words pupils remembers. The answers are as listed below:

• How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?

Determining child's difficulties, preferences, needs and interests can be only done through careful observation.

• Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

A project task is given in order to develop and strengthen their previous knowledge and use different working techniques like group work, team work or pair work. These are formed by diverse students

• What tools you use to have child's focus?

Various techniques and methods depending on child's individual skills, abilities and intelligence.

• How will you know the student is making progress?

I try to follow them systematically in a multi-phased process.

• How is school administration helping most advanced students?

By giving them a chance to participate in school projects and various social activities in or out of school. At the end of the school year the most successful students are chosen and given a certificate as the best students of their generation. This helps them in their entry to secondary schools.

• Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability?

Yes, in many ways.

• How do you manage some differentiated approach – students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

Forming teams of six students, mixed randomly to play off each other's strengths. They discuss lecture materials in class and learn to be responsible for each other because individual quiz scores reflect the average performance of team members. Variety and diversity is important to keep students engaged and also to respond to different kinds of learning styles. I also use combination of video clips and demonstration involving students in their classes. Pair students also help both learn better:A strong student with struggling student .Both in the pair typically perform better in class.

4.1.6 Elementary school "YahyaKemal"IIa – Skopje

The interview was made on 04.12.2015 in the elementary school "Tefeyyuz" Skopje. The interview was made with a second grade teacher, who already had defined the gifted on English language, the definition was made by the participation the pupil has during the English class. The answers are as listed below:

How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 During lesson observation, communication with other classmates, interaction, participation and homework assignments, assessment and project presentations.

• Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

I implement the already learned material into games and discussions so that it turns out like we practice the specific material in order not to boring but yet interesting.

• What tools you use to have child's focus?

Most important of all is to have good grounded classroom management rules so that the lesson can be accomplished in the way the teacher has imagined. When this is accomplished the tools I use during a lesson are: school books and workbook, flashcards, story cards, presentations, videos, drawings, songs, karaoke songs, story books, posters and puppets.

- How will you know the student is making progress?
 Most evident prove is during observation which could be seen by its participation and interaction, homework assignments, presentations and assessments.
- How is school administration helping most advanced students? Is not helping in that area.
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability?
 No I do not, I am not bias and I work and focus on all the students with the same attitude and respect no matter whether some of them are better and some of them are slower or have less knowledge than some others.
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

To those students that need more attention I prepare and give additional material so that they can practice back at home a bit more or I tell them instructions on what do they need to pay more attention and practice that. To students that are much better than the others I tell them to practice more on what I feel they can improve it even better.

4.1.7 Elementary school "Istikbal" II-a – Tetovo

The interview was made on 07.12.2015 in the elementary school "Istikbal" Tetovo. The interview was made with a second grade teacher, who defined the gifted on English language as active during the class and participates in all activities. The answers are as listed below:

- How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 If he/she likes one lesson he does it without asking anything if he/she has difficulties he tells the teacher and of course she helps him
- Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

If someone is familiar with the lesson I say ok let it be a revision for you and listen to the others

- What tools you use to have child's focus
 To have child's focus I use their attention while I'm speaking someday I use CD, flashcards,letters
- How will you know the student is making progress?
 The student progress I see in their activity, that we are doing every day revision etc
- How is school administration helping most advanced students?-It helps not so much
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability?
 No I don't focus only on students who show interest and ability I work with all of them
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

Those students who know better I let them continue with the others. I pay more attention to the students that are passive and not understand

4.1.8 Elementary school "Istikbal " I-a - Tetovo

The interview was made on 07.12.2015 in the elementary school "Istikbal" Tetovo. The interview was made with a first grade teacher, it was difficult to define the talented pupil since they all seemed that have the same knowledge and ability, and one characteristic was definitive for the teacher to decide who the talented pupil in her class is. The answers are as listed below:

• How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?

I notice immediately if someone likes English.Those who like Englishdon't have problem with the pronunciation of the words.Those who have difficulties they can't pronounce even the word "hello" as it should.

• Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

If they are familiar with the lesson I usually have conversation with them (speaking skill) they talk in English with me or with each other

• What tools you use to have child's focus

I usually use flashcards worksheet,CD,TV,radio. I try to be funny for them because is very important for student 6-7 years old the class to be funny with body gestures and signs.

- How will you know the student is making progress?
 If the student is responding easy in given questions or he/she translate without my help or he/she is very active during the class.
- How is school administration helping most advanced students? They don't help.
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability?
 No. I try to focus same maybe sometime I focus more to those who need my help.
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

I usually keep more classes normally separated because I don't want student who have difficulties tofeel inferior from those more advanced (the good ones).

4.1.9 Elementary school "Bashkimi" I-c – Gostivar

The interview was made on 08.12.2015 in the elementary school "Bashkimi" Gostivar. The interview was made with a first grade teacher. In this class there was already one pupil who was defined as talented in English Language. The answers are as listed below:

How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 A child's difficulties might be known by his/her behavior, not participating in particular activities. If a child has preferences he/she takes active part in that given task.

• Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

If something is familiar to a child that means that the child can communicate with the teacher, add something, expresses ideas etc.

- What tools you use to have child's focus? Ask different questions, ask them write and pronounce simple words.
- How will you know the student is making progress?
 By everyday activities and daily check lists
- How is school administration helping most advanced students? It's not helping.
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability?
 No, I focus on everybody in class, no matter their intelligence.
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

We try equally for all students even though they are different.

4.1.10 Elementary school "Bashkimi" I-a – Gostivar

The interview was made on 08.12.2015 in the elementary school "Bashkimi" Gostivar. The interview was made with a first grade teacher, her class was a huge size class and uses children who are better than others to interact and explain in their way what they know. The answers are as listed below:

- How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 It is being taken in consideration the opinions and questions asked and the answers we get.
- Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

I ask from those students who know the answer to explain it on their own in order to listen the others and through his explanation they will understand.

• What tools you use to have child's focus?

I use interaction between students and their engagement in tasks.

• How will you know the student is making progress?

The evidence for their presence in class, how correct they answer in exercises and their homework.

- How is school administration helping most advanced students? It's not helping much.
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability? Not in particular but I will try to give them extra classes.
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

There are extra classes for the advanced ones and for the others who don't have very good grades.

4.1.11 Elementary school "Ismail Qemali" II-a – Gostivar

The interview was made on 09.12.2015 in the elementary school "Ismail Qemali" Gostivar. The interview was made with a second grade teacher, before the interview he explained what his knowledge on the gifted and talented is, and how much he focuses on this group of pupils. The answers are as listed below:

- How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 If it is one of his preferences he will be engaged more in activities, otherwise he will stay quiet.
- Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

If the subject is already familiar I will try to improve it more, advance.

- What tools you use to have child's focus?
 Sometimes to make something sound as more interesting I raise my voice, the intonation of voice has a great role.
- How will you know the student is making progress? If the student is making an effort to improve his knowledge and is constantly trying to learn, it is considered as a progress.
- How is school administration helping most advanced students? It is helping through different quizzes and programs.
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability?

I focus on everyone equally, I focus to those who have difficulties to motivate them learn more and to those who are advanced to improve even more.

• How do you manage some differentiated approach – students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

I use different approach in order to manage working with all students.

4.1.12 Elementary school "Ismail Qemali"I-b – Gostivar

The interview was made on 09.12.2015 in the elementary school "Ismail Qemali" Gostivar. The interview was made with a first grade teacher, who explained that visual learning is much effective for first grader; helps keep them focused and learn easily. The answers are as listed below:

- How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 Each student has different preferences and difficulties. I choose preferences based on learning style, whether they prefer visual learning or particular class activity. Difficulties are mostly on questionnaires and evaluations.
- Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

I mostly focus on students for whom the lesson is less familiar.

- What tools you use to have child's focus? I use visual tools and reward chart to encourage them.
- How will you know the student is making progress?
 I use checklists, assessment form based on homework, classroom activities, worksheet and short term tests.
- How is school administration helping most advanced students?
 School administration awards them with certificate and participation at school competitions.
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability?
 I try to focus but most of the class time is focused on those who need more help.
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

I try to use activities that mostly are acceptable for both groups.

4.1.13 Elementary school "Ismail Qemali" I-a - Gostivar

The interview was made on 09.12.2015 in the elementary school "Ismail Qemali" Gostivar. This interview was also made with a first grade teacher, who explained that it is hard in overcrowded class to focus on those who are talented, instead tries to focus on all pupils in class. The answers are as listed below:

- How do you determine what one child's preferences/difficulties are?
 If the student react with positivity and is engaged in the task or activity that is a sign it is a preferred topic otherwise it is not.
- Let's say you teach something that is familiar to some of your students. How do you behave then?

I teach it anyway by engaging the students who know already the subject more in order to help those who are not familiar.

- What tools you use to have child's focus?
 Mostly I use pictures and trying to name what students see in the picture.
- How will you know the student is making progress?
 Is he takes actively part in class all the time, regularly is making his homework.
- How is school administration helping most advanced students?
 By offering to advanced students participation in competition.
- Do you focus more on students who show interest and ability? I try to focus on all my students.
- How do you manage some differentiated approach students who need more attention because they are more advanced or because they are lagging behind the others?

The students who are more able I give them extra exercises to work on whereas on the other students I give only the tasks that are in the book.

4.2 Parent Questionnaires

• How does your son/daughter do well?

Parent 1: She is very focused in class during teacher's explanation of the new lesson, repetition, also working at home under parents' supervision repeating the lessons and by doing homework.

Parent 2: She is doing well by listening English song and watching cartoons all in English.

Parent3: He repeats the new word all the time and makes a lot of questions about the new word.

Parent 4: She uses I pad and computers all the time, watches cartoons and through them she learned a lot of words.

• How do you think your child learn best?

Parent 1: The best way until now was watching cartoons, in a visual way and by listening all of them in English.

Parent 2: She learns by repeating. I and my wife tried to teach her poetry for children and other things for some times and she learned them.

Parent 3: His strength is listening, he can easily remember if he listens a couple times the word or song.

Parent 4: The best way she learns is by watching and listening.

What difficulty does he/she is faced with at school?

Parent 1: Most difficulties which the child might face in school is the class size, if there are more than 30 pupils it's hard for the teacher to focus and help all the children, it's hard to make a repetition or give the needed space to talk every pupil.

Parent 2: The main difficulty until now has been the attention teacher pays to children. The class is huge and there is no chance to spent time on children one by one and meet their needs.

Parent 3: The main difficulty I think is that in school there is not enough space to express his talent.

Parent 4: The main difficulty in school is that there is no challenge enough. The school should be interesting and challenging for students.

• What is the good side about the school?

Parent 1: Commutations, working in groups, learning based on games, drawing picture formulating words

Parent 2: Learning new things, socialization, collective life, etc

Parent 3: It could be communication, having friends, learning easily.

Parent 4: They can easily make friends, socialize.

• What do you think should be improved with regard to your child's abilities and preferences?

Parent 1: Having private courses in English language would help more.

Parent 2: Improve the class conditions, have smaller groups and more qualified teachers.

Parent 3: There should be more space for the new talents and how children can express their talent. New ways of learning, for example learning should be fun, have more games, children should not feel the stress of going in school.

Parent 4: The class should be smaller, have fewer children and provide challenge in order to have children attention and in this way there will be fun for them.

• How do you think this school year is progressing?

Parent 1: This year the progress in huge because the previous year the group was larger and the learning process was more difficult, this year the groups are smaller about 20 children and the learning process is much effective and helpful. It's hard for the teacher to handle that entire group and have discipline in class, this year the new teacher has more abilities and the group is smaller so the learning process is much progressive.

Parent 2: This is her first year in school and until now the progress is good, even though it can be better.

Parent 3: My son is in first grade and until now I think it is very well.

Parent 4: Since my daughter is second grade, comparing to the first grade it is progressing much better because she has friends, feels familiar with the teacher and the class.

What are his/her challenges?

Parent 1: Challenges are more in vocabulary, the new words that are more difficult.

Parent 2: She is very sensitive child and it's very hard for her to make the first step and talk, if the teacher doesn't give her attention she might know the entire subject but would never talk about that.

Parent 3: The main challenge is writing, he just started learning to write in native language.

Parent 4: The main challenge I would count the way teaching is carried, for some children it is very good but if there are advanced children they get bored easily.

• What do you think there is needed to be improved?

Parent 1: Instead of having two classes in English there can be five in one week, more English classes, teachers should have more skills and knowledge for English, they should have pedagogical skills to know how to approach to children, teachers should use English much often even though children are young and English is their second language it's hard to understand but its more useful to talk more English.

Parent 2: there could be improved school conditions and also the program. According to my information the school program is dedicated for children who spend all the day at school, but our children have only 4 or 5 hours.

Parent 3: Teaching strategies is the main thing that should be improved; environment and technology should be used more in class.

Parent 4: Maybe learning strategies, or using more technology in class since most of the children already know and understand technology.

4.3 Class Observation

The observation was made in three elementary classes chosen randomly, the main focus during the observation was the way teachers treated the most able pupils, the strategies they used during the teaching process, the way the teacher transmits the knowledge to the students, how teacher qualities affected student's attitude toward the subject and students response to the different strategies used in class. The observation was carried out in four classes in elementary schools in Skopje, pupils were first and second graders, and class duration was 45 minutes.

4.3.1 Class I

In the first observation, there was a class with 32 students; it was a first grade in Skopje. The class started with a warm greeting for the new person in the class. The teacher started by counting who is absent and then continued with a warming up exercise. The subject was "My Family". There were questions about the previous lesson in the same subject in order to recall what pupils remember and by repeating to recall what ones might have forgotten. There was no need to be informed from the teacher who is more able in English Language class because in this class it was obvious. From the beginning of the class, there was a golden hair girl, who was active all the time and tried to be as noisy as possible in order her answerto be heard. In order to keep the privacy the student ongoing the research will be named as Student A.

Involving all the pupils in the activities was a very important task for the teacher in order to keep the balance in class, help those who as are lagging behind and also to not obstruct the advanced ones. Continuing with the other exercises there could be notices that student A was active all the time, obviously, she had very good social skills, she showed readiness to help others in exercises that were not clear to everyone. She behaved as teachers' assistant in teaching.

Diverse strategies used in class were purposefully in order to meet all students' needs. First students were divided in groups; there was a mix of very good students with others who are lagging back because teacher thought in this way all students learn easily, some asking their friends whereas some asking the teacher until exercise is understood. A lot of questions were asked in students' native language while teacher tried to respond in very simple English.

4.3.2 Class II

Observation in the second class was more fun. The class was second grade; there were 35 students in Skopje. Students seemed very curious to see someone else there and they tried all the time to show how much they know, how good they are and asked a lot of questions. The class started with warm-up activity by repeating the last lesson and most of the students knew the answers and were very active. The teacher presented the new subject and it was "My food". It was an interesting subject for second-grade children because they would learn how to name things they eat every day. The teacher had prepared pictures of food and sticks them to the blackboard so everyone was able to see.

A high achiever in this class among all these bright students was one boy whom hereinafter will name him as Student B. This student was very active; he knew all the answers what was asked by the teacher. It is chosen these students as high achiever because the class teacher suggested him as the one who learns faster than others, has his own way how remembers the new words and he always performs and the top of the group. He is courageous and makes questions all the time.

Strategies used in class were also diverse, the teacher asked questions that were already answered in order for the students who are lagging behind to have clear and be more courageous to answer again. This was a very useful way to help everyone participate in class, even those who are not very good students.

4.3.3 Class III

The third observation was held also in Skopje, a second grade class with 30 students. The lesson started with warm-up activity by repeating what was learned in the previous class. After this activity, the teacher started asking students what pets do they like and can they name any of them. To my amazement, they already knew most of them and were competing who will name more. They started talking about the pets they keep at home, their names and how much they love them.

As high achiever, it could be spotted a girl, who knew most of the animals to name. She was interested all the time in the subject and tried to learn the new words she didn't know already and used them all the time during the class. Those animals that were not mentioned by the teachers she raised her hand and asked all the time. Clearly, the other students addressed toward her for help and she enjoyed while helping the others.

Strategies used in class were also diverse, there was a puzzle with animal pictures and students should fit all the parts to get the whole picture. Another strategy was drawing and painting, students in their notebooks should draw their pet and paint it with colors, name it and the teacher would grade it at the end. What was specific in this class was the treatment the teacher did to every student; he exactly knew who needed what. While everyone was learning how to write the word "dog or cat", he asked from Students C to write other words like "rabbit or turtle" which for second graders are large words.

4.4 Analysis of Results

The three instruments used in this research gave accurate answers to the questions whether early identification of G&T children contributes in nurturing and expanding their intelligence and proper teaching strategies assists in better focus and attention during class. According to the results gathered it can be realized that the needs of gifted and talented children in English language classes in our school system are not met. Gifted education in early years in Macedonia is not provided and there is a need for more research, debate, and consultations.

From teachers interviews, it is confirmed that contribution of teachers in collaboration with parents is essential for advancing the gift children might have. Through this research, it is proved that is children considered gifted and talented are not identified early and there is no proper treatment, there is a risk for not being challenged enough by which they mightlose interest in the subject, feel bored during class and start making inappropriate behavior. In this way most probably we tend to lose the capacity and talent the children have.

Concerning the tools or the strategies teacher use to have students focus, from the interviews we come to understand that there are being used very little the advanced strategies like technologyor group work. Instead, some teachers use more obsolete methods by raising their voice or asking questions. What is very important to note here is that there is a difference between public and private schools. Teachers from private schoolsanswered that in order to keep students' focus used flashcards, story books, posters, videos, drawing etc.In this case the recourses private schools have at their disposal and their usage facilitates using advanced teaching strategies in class.

Regarding the question if teachers teach something that is familiar to the advanced students, most of the teachers try to manage the situation by giving them extra material or divide class in groups where advanced students explain to the rest of the group what they already know, but there most of the teachers claimed they ask from the students since he knows the subject, to be quiet until other children learn the same lesson.

On the question whether teachers focus more on the advanced students the answers are surprising because from thirteen teachers who answered the interview question only two of them admitted that during the teaching of English language they focus on the students who are more advanced than others, whereas the other teachers admitted that they never focus more on advanced students instead they focus on those who lack behind. This is an indicator showing us the low awareness teachers have for gifted and talented students they might have in their class. In this case, there is not a possibility to make identification of gifted and talented children. Another important factor in the realm of gifted and talented children is the school administration. In this research, it is revealed the negligence of school administration toward G&T children. Six teachersemphasized that school administration doesn't undertake any measure in this area. The other teachers as a measure listed schools quizzes, competition between two schools or at the end of the academic year it is chosen as the best student of the year and award them certificates. Eventhough this might seem like a step forward it has to be noted that not adequate. Also, schools do not provide professional counseling service to which students or parents could address issues and concerns they might have. Hence this is an indicator that gifted and talented children are left behind in our education system.

From a parents point of view, the best strategy their child learns are visually and by listening. One parent answered that their child repeats many times what learns but again it includes watching and listening, since in the previous question how their child is doing well it is answered that their child learns by watching English cartoon and English songs.

Parents agree on one issue and that is class size. All parents answered that their child finds difficult to learn and express themselves if the class size is huge. Also, this affects teacher attention because they cannot give the needed attention to every student but they will choose to focus on those who are the best or those who lack behind. Concerning the next question for parents what should be improved in class, their answer was the class size, qualified teachers who could challenge children and use different learning strategies and provide space to new talents to express their talent.

Challenges in learning English language, parents of young learners find in writing and vocabulary. Additionally, the second parent mentions the difficulty the child faces because of shyness and missing courage to step up and talk. In this case, if teacher's attention is missed toward this child, it will remain "unknown" and might know the entire lessons but would never talk if the teacher doesn't identify and work with her.

Using technology in class is another issue parents think should be improved. Since learning and teaching have been changed recently, this is an issue that has a great impact on both. Nowadays most children are familiar with technology, they use it since the early years and learning through technology has become inevitable. By integrating technology in classes can make teaching and learning entertaining. Children will cooperate in learning new things especially words and it will give the opportunity to have better interaction with their classmates which will encourage collaboration.

Furthermore, having more English language classes is another requirement from parents, children in school have two-three English language classes during the week, indeed there should be five.

Findings

The instruments used in this research for collecting data whether in our schools have met the needs of gifted and talented children has given us specific information. According to the results gathered we can realize that the needs of gifted and talented children in English language classes in our school system are not met. Gifted education in early years in Macedonia is not provided and there is a need for more research, debate, and consultations.

Different factors were taken into consideration like teacher's preparation and knowledge to teach gifted young learners, the tools they use during teaching, parents awareness and possibilities they have to support and help emotionally their children, school administration they were all taken into consideration and were analyzed in order to achieve accurate results.

While analyzing of the results emerged from three instruments used in this research, the information was sufficiently to answer the main questions in this study. The answers of the questions below will give us specific data gathered during the research.

1. Does early identification of gifted and talented children produce better results in the learning process?

Based on the results gathered it can be concluded that early identification of gifted and talented children is substantial in the forthcoming process of developing the talent or giftedness. According to parent's answers, teachers should be more pedagogical background in and training in order to give suggestions or advice how parents to act and what to do next. Teacher of Young English Language learners should be aware of the characteristics of gifted children and have a solid understanding of this special education.

2. Will understanding the social and emotional needs of gifted and talented children will help to achieve better results in school?

Understanding the needs of gifted children on social and emotional aspect is hard for teachers but also an essential tool in the progress. The pressure society puts on children "to be like everyone", has a negative effect on the children. It makes them loseself-esteem on their abilities and effects how they behave. Gifted and talented children especially ELL should be understood and help them express themselves, and guide their energy on areas where can be established passion and self-satisfaction. Unfortunately, during this research, it could be concluded that the social and emotional needs of children are not being taken into consideration and it not being emphasized this need.

3. Do teachers teach using the appropriate teaching strategy for gifted and talented students?

Based on the data gathered in the research it can be concluded that the teachers don't use convenient teaching strategy for English language talented learners. From teachers' answers, it can be seen that their focus is not on the talented students but on all students in the class, especially to those whom the lesson is less familiar. With this attitude, it is beginning prevented the engagement of the advanced students in activities. With this teaching strategy learners with higher talent and ability becomes demotivated and bored during the class and loses its interest in learning English.

4.6 Research Hypothesis

H1#Identifying gifted and talented students as early as possible is better and easier for the teacher and parents to help to nurture and consolidate their giftedness.

Based on the results of the interviews this hypothesis is proved to be right. Since teachers who are aware of the social and emotional needs of G&T students are able to help them much more in their way to success. Teachers are informed about the methods for successful teaching and how to achieve higher results with these students. According to Gallagher and Coleman (1994),poor communication between teachers and students leads to a lack of opportunities to observe and understand children including ELL. The possibility of easy identification of ELL to be identified is through the collaboration of educators who will bring the necessary information about the children from different sources.

H2# Using appropriate teaching methods in a class with gifted students will make learning interesting and fun for them

Hypothesis proved to be true according to the research. Most teachers who were part of this research were not using different methods during teaching, and they were not paying special attention to the students who were advanced in their course but mostly their attention was focused on children where were behind with lesson. With this method of teaching, advanced students can get bored in class and they will try to entertain themselves by making troubles or distracting others from the lesson.

H3# Teachers who have appropriate G&T education will increasesELG&T students capacity and self-esteem

According to the results of this study, thishypothesis proved to be correct. This issue is not mentioned directly in the interviews with teachers, but from their answers they let us understand that unfortunately, they are not able to recognize giftedness in their pupils. Having basic knowledge about the importance of these talents and capacities would help teachers to identify and work more with these children. Their low awareness makes pupils to lose self-esteem, get bored in class, loose attention and end with lower results. The attitude to help pupils who lay back and not focusing on pupils that already know shows low self-awareness and poor educational background of the teacher.

H4# Smaller Class size gives space to express English Language Learners themselves with ease

Based on the results of this study this hypothesis proved to be correct. Even though it was not one of the questions on the parent's questionnaires it was addressed as a significant factor that has an impact on children learning process and outcome. The classes in our schools are overcrowded with much more students than one teacher can handle which impacts on the quality of teaching. The impossibility of dedicating attention and time to each child as much as they need, the academic year ends without the expected results.

H5# Usage of technology in class while teaching the English Language helps students

Technology has become our everyday life tool, and it has become a necessity in teaching also especially English language. Based on the results this hypothesis proved to be true since parents claimed their children learned their first words in English through the usage of technology. It will ease the teaching process and make it learning entertaining. Using applications creatively, putting some music on and children learn the lyrics in English language or play short movies, shall make children have fun, learn easily and will not get bored in class which is very important.

Chapter V

Conclusion and recommendations

5.1 Conclusion

This study aimed to find out the needs of young English Language Learners in elementary schools in the Republic of Macedonia and whether those needs are met during the education process. In this study were used three instruments which include teacher's interview, parents' questionnaire, and class observation. Thirteen schools participated from three major cities in the country and from all participants it was gathered data which was helpful to conclude that the previously stated hypothesis were correct. The results obtained from the instruments used for research made us clear that the main hypothesis of the research which states the importance of collaboration of <u>gifted and talented students and teachers</u>, who have gifted and talented knowledge or special education, pay attention and use proper teaching strategies, can nurture and expand children's' intelligence and the highest potential will be reached, is standing as correct.

According to the issue of teachers with lack of knowledge or understanding of the special needs of gifted children, stands clear that concrete steps should be undertaken from relevant institutions, in order to have a future generation of gifted and talented children with an appropriate education. Since, our future depends from these children in all areas of our life; it is time to give them what they deserve.

Administrative support from school administration and Ministry of Education is obligatory. From the research, we came to the conclusion that the above mention institutions are doing very little to come in help to gifted and talented children. First of all should be carried out a special course in universities to prepare teachers how to teach gifted children, then establish a special school for gifted and talented learners with special curriculum and teaching techniques for intelligence that learners will be identified.

The crucial issue for further developmentunderstands emotional and social need and development of the learner. It is important for the teacher to recognize the traits of the gifted student and adapt the teaching in order to fulfill the emotional need also, instead of focusing only on cognitive area. There are gifted learners who have low self-esteem, anxiety, procrastinate all the time or who are hyperactive. They also face the social problems often, for some of them it is hard to make

friends, or are under peer pressure for various questions. Adapting the curriculum to these needs and teaching strategies will make it easier for them to overcome fears or problems they are facing.

Notably, putting gifted and talented children in the same class as other children losetheir interest on the subject prevents teachers' attention and advanced students are forced to listen to what they already know. Instead of progressing, advancing in the subject gifted children will become bored and loose interest during class. Furthermore, gifted and talented learners need to be challenged daily in their talent. In classes with a huge number of students, it is impossible to challenge gifted children. On the other hand, following the evolution and identifying areas of the progress and regressof gifted children in large class size is extremely difficult if not impossible for one teacher.

5.2 Recommendation

While collecting data for this research, the first thing that could be noticed was that it doesn't exist special school or program for children with giftedness and talent. As the first recommendation starting from the importance I would consider establishing special school for gifted and talented children. In normal schools where all children learn with one curriculum, gifted students can be disadvantaged since their needs are not met. The second important reason is that normal schools can kill their talent and giftedness. If a talent doesn't get nurtured it can lead to boredom, frustration, behavioral problems, and might end up as anunderachieved student. Developing special programs and policies for gifted and talented, teaching according to them is essential to achieve the maximum potential.

During this research, it was found that there are shortcomings in the school system in supporting the gifted and talented children. I would recommend in every school to have professional School counselor knowing Gifted and Talented Issues, who will be properly educated on the giftedness, which are able to make the identification of gifted children and have knowledge on the technique how to support the student emotionally, socially and cognitively. School counselors should team with parents, psychologists, teachers, and others who influence gifted and talented students to conduct staffing on such problems as an underachievement, social adjustment, or severe personal issues (VanTassel-Baska, 1990).

Having teacher training programs devoted to giftedness and issues that have to deal with it, will be helpful for teachers to understand their students and gain knowledge how to conduct children and situations they face every day during teaching. Furthermore, having knowledge about differentiated instructions strategies could be helpful and challenging for gifted learners. In order to know what each student's knowledge degree is, the teacher should use differentiated strategies to know who knows what. It can also be helpful to challenge the student by guiding to new stages of knowledge. Additionally, it will help teachers to meet every student individual need and understand how students learn better.

A focus should be paid on the role of the family in the education of the gifted child.Since in the early years all children rely on parental care, this makes an important issue for special research and discussion. In order to meet the normative standards for physical and psychological growth children must receive emotional care and psychological protection. These are the principal issues to achieve all other stages. Parents awareness on their children giftedness and talented is substantial in their further development and education. If parents don't have the needed knowledge they won't be able to identify and to contribute to children's development and academic performance. This makes essential the involvement of parents during the identification process and informs them about the importance of giftedness.

5.3 Limitations

In this study were used three instruments which gave us accurate results but we faced limitation during the realization of this study. As first limitation, I would count the small number of participants, especially parents who expressed less interest to participate in this study. With lack number of parents who participated in this study, it is hard to understand the overall opinion about the school from parents' perspective, how they help their child learn best and what children face in everyday duties. Since we mentioned the importance of parents in gifted children education, we can't give specific data about how parents give the needed attention to their child, also how they support the emotional needs of their children.

The study took place only in three major cities in the Republic of Macedonia, which does not give a clear picture whether the situation in the whole country is the same or there are schools and teachers who give more support gifted and talented students. Since the impossibility of the researcher to reach more cities, the findings in this research should not be generalized in the whole country. Broadening the study in more cities in the country, could have given us more accurate results and could be used to represent the overall situation in the country.

Even though there were clear instructions for the teacher interviews there is no way to examine the information that was discussed during the interview. Since the answers are very short and similar without extended explanation, makes us question the honesty by which answers are given.

Another limitation was that there are not officially appointed gifted children who have taken the test for giftedness. Teachers before starting the interview explained that they will answer the questions for students who are academically advanced or the best student in the class, but they haven't made any exam or test that proves their talent or giftedness. The lack of official institution or school for gifted children deprives us of more accurate research studies. The absence of officially identified gifted children in any subjectmakes it difficult to have an extended research.

Bibliography

- Ackerman, C. M. (2009). The essential elements of Dabrowski"s theory of positive disintegration and how they are connected. *Roeper Review*, 31, 81-95. doi:10.1080/02783190902737657.
- Action for Gifted Students in Queensland Schools: Strategies and Indicators of Achievement. Retrieved on 22.5.2015 from http://www.qagtc.org.au/files/Strategies_Indicators_Document.pdf
- Anderson, M. A. (1986). Protocol analysis: A methodology for exploring the information processing of gifted students. *Gifted Child Quarterly*, 30, 28-32.
- Ann Robinson and Pamela R. Clinkenbeard (2008), History of Giftedness: Perspectives from the Past Presage Modern Scholarship, Retrieved on 15 January 2015 http://www.springer.com/978-0-387-74399-8
- Austin, D. Kathy, (2011), Giving voice: a mixed methods of gifted students' and their parents' perceptions of their reading experiences Oregon State University.
- Baum, S. (Ed). (2004). *Twice exceptional and special population of gifted students*. California, Thousand Oaks, Corwin Press.
- Batchelder, L. (2000) Assessment & Intelligence, Child Development Retrieved on 27.02.2016 from http://brainconnection.brainhq.com/2000/05/20/gifted-students/
- Begg, K. (2012), Gifted around the Globe: Gifted and Talented education in International Schools Massey University, New Zealand.
- Brief History of Gifted and Talented Education Retrieved on 26.03.2015

http://www.nagc.org/resources-publications/resources/gifted-education-us/briefhistory-gifted-and-talented-education

- Bloom, B. (Ed.) (1985). Developing Talent inYoung People. New York: Ballantine Books
- Bloland, D.Dagny(2006). Ready, Willing and Able, Teaching English to gifted, talented and exceptionally conscientious adolescents. Heinemann, Portsmouth NH.
- Caldwell, Daniel William, "Educating Gifted Students in the Regular Classroom: Efficacy, Attitudes, and Differentiation of Instruction" (2012). *Electronic Theses & Dissertations*. Paper 822.
- Carlson, N.N. (2004). School counselors' knowledge, perceptions, and involvement concerning gifted and talented students. University of Maryland
- Castellano, J. &Díaz, E. (2001). Reaching New Horizons: Gifted and Talented Education for Culturally and Linguistically Diverse Students. Pearson Publishing Inc. United States of America.
- Chapman, J. W., &McAlpine, D. D. (1988). Students" perceptions of ability. *Gifted Child Quarterly*, 32, 222-224.
- Clark, B. (1997). Growing up gifted. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice-Hall.
- Clark, B. (1992). *Growing up gifted: Developing the potential of children at home and at school.* New York, NY: Merrill.
- Cohen, L. M. (1998). *Paradigm change in gifted education: Developing talent is this the optimal set of possibilities?* Conceptual Foundations Newsletter, 6 (2), 3-5.

- Cohen, L. M. (in press). Dogma and definitions of giftedness and talent. To appear in D. Ambrose, R. J. Sternberg, &BharathSriraman (Eds.) *Dogmatism and high ability: The erosion and warping of creative intelligence, Vol. 1.* Routledge/Taylor & Francis.
- Cohen, L. M.(1994), Meeting the Needs of Gifted and Talented Minority Language Students Retrieved on 20.02.2016 from http://www.kidsource.com/kidsource/content/gifted_and_minority_lang.html
- Colangelo, N. Myths and Stereotypes-Retrieved from: https://www.abcontario.ca/resources-support/understanding-giftedness/mythsstereotypes
- Coleman, L, (2004). Is consensus on a definition in the field possible, desirable, and necessary? *Reoper Review*, 27, 10-11.
- Colorado Department of Education. Gifted Education Guidelines and Resources (2004). Denver, Colorado
- Cummins, J. (1994) Second language acquisition essential information Retrieved on 16.09.2015 from http://esl.fis.edu/teachers/support/cummin.htm
- Dean, G. (2008). English for Gifted and Talented students. SAGE Publications, London.
- Eunsook, H. Greene, M. and Hartzell, S. (2011). Cognitive and Motivational Characteristics of Elementary Teachers in General Education Classrooms and in Gifted Programs. University of Nevada. Las Vegas, NV.
- Feldhusen, J. & Treffinger, D. (1980). Creative Thinking & Problem Solving in Gifted Education (3rd ed.). Dubuque, IA: Kendall/Hunt

- Feldhusen, J. & Britton Kolloff, P., (1986). The Purdue Three-Stage Model retrieved on 14.06.2014 from http://approachestogiftededucationku.weebly.com/purdue-3-stage-model.html
- Feldhusen, J. & Britton Kolloff, P., (1986). The Purdue Three-Stage enrichment model for gifted education at the elementary level.Retrieved 28.02.2015 https://sites.google.com/site/modelsforthegifted/change-the-banner/purdue-threestage-model
- Fenny, S. Christensen, D. & Moravic, E. (2005). Who am I in the lives of Children? Seventh edition, Pearson Education Inc. New Jersey.
- Gagne F. (2011) Academic Talent Development and the Equity Issue inGifted Education —Talent Development & Excellence 3, Vol. 3, No. 1, 2011, 3–22 -Retrieved 30.05.2015 http://portal.ou.nl/documents/4291774/4368273/SE+Gagn%C3%A9%20Academic+T alent+Development+and+the+Equity+Issue+in+Gifted+Education.pdf
- Gallagher, J. J., & Gallagher, S. A. (1994). *Teaching the gifted child*. Needham Heights: Allyn and Bacon
- Gallagher, James J.(1994) Current and Historical Thinking on Education for Gifted and Talented Students, Washington, DC
- Gallagher, J. (1994), Current and Historical Thinking on Education for Gifted and Talented Students, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill. Retrieved on December 2014 http://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/ED372584.pdf
- Gardner, H.Frames of Mind: The Theory of Multiple Intelligences. Retrieved on 20 February 2015 from:https://howardgardner01.files.wordpress.com/2012/06/443davis-christodoulou-seider-mi-article.pdf

• George, D. (1997). The Challenge of the Able Child. Retrieved on 06.02.2015 from:http://www.independentthinking.co.uk/media/42350/the-challenge-of-the-ablechild.pdf

• Gensowski, M. Heckman, J. and Savelyev, P. (2011). The Effects of Education, Personality, and IQ on Earnings of High-Ability Men. Retrieved on 04.03.2015 from:

http://www.iza.org/conference_files/CoNoCoSk2011/gensowski_m6556.pdf

- Gifted and talented children defined, Iowa Code, Section 257.44 (11, 0)Retrieved on 16.09.2015 from https://www.legis.iowa.gov/DOCS/ACO/IC/LINC/Section.257.44.pdf
- Gifted and talented children in (and out) of the classroom. What does it mean to be Gifted/Talented? A report for the Council of Curriculum, Examinations and Assessment (CCEA) Feb 28th 2006, Retrieved on 19.05.2015 from: http://www.nicurriculum.org.uk/docs/inclusion_and_sen/gifted/gifted_children_0603 06.pdf
- Gifted and Talented Students Meeting Their Needs in New Zealand Schools. Published by Ministry of Education of New Zealand. Learning media. wellington (2000)Retrieved on 20.12.2016 from: https://gifted.tki.org.nz/assets/Gifted-and-talented-students-meeting-their-needs-in-New-Zealand-Schools.pdf
- Gross, M. U. M. (1999). Small poppies: Highly gifted children in the early years. *RoeperReview*, 21, 207-214
- Gullery, Ch. An investigation to identify the most effective teaching practices and organizational strategies used to accelerate learning outcomes for Gifted and Talented students in Wanganui District schools. Retrieved on 24.09.2015 from: http://www.educationalleaders.govt.nz/Leadership-development/Professional-information/Principals-sabbatical-reports/Report-archives-for-2007-2014/Primary-award-recipients-2007/Gullery-Chris

- Hall, Quinn & Gollnick, (2008). The joy of Teaching, Making a difference in students learning. Pearson Education Inc. United States of America.
- Harris, H. (2009) Identifying gifted and talented English language learners: A case study.University of Colorado Denver. Retrieved on: 05.11.2018from: https://www.researchgate.net/publication/306218582
- Hebert, P. Thomas (2011). Understanding the social and emotional lives of gifted students. Prufock Press Inc. Wago, Texas.
- Hollingworth, L. S. (1926). *Gifted children: Their nature and nurture*. New York, NY: The MacMillan Company
- Iowa Department of Education, The Connie Belin and Jacqueline N. Blank International Center for Gifted Education and Talent Development, 2008, Identifying Gifted and Talented English Language Learners Grades K-12, retrieved 16.09.2015 from https://www.educateiowa.gov/sites/files/ed/documents/IdentifyGiftedTalentedELL.pd

f

- Jonathan A. Plucker, Kelly E. Rapp, and Rebecca S. Martínez. (2009) Identifying Gifted and Talented English Language Learners: A Case Study. University of Colorado. Denver
- Kanevsky, L. Deferential Differentiation: What Types of Differentiation Do Students Want? Gifted Child Quarterly. SAGE Publishing 2011.
- Kearney, K. (1992). Homeschooling highly gifted children. The highly gifted. <u>http://www.hoagiesgifted.org/the_highly_gifted_3.htm#homeschool</u>
- Kearney, K. (1996). Highly gifted children in full inclusion classrooms. *Highly Gifted Children, 12(4).*

http://www.eric.ed.gov/PDFS/ED425575.pdf

- Klein, A. G. (2002). *A forgotten voice: A biography of LetaStetterHollingworth.* Scottsdale, AZ: Great Potential Press.
- Kingore, B. (2004). Differentiation: Simplified, Realistic, and Effective Austin: Professional Associates Publishing. Retrieved on 13.10.2015 from: http://www.bertiekingore.com/high-gt-create.htm
- Kingore, B. (2008). 20 Tips for Nurturing gifted children. Gifted Education Communicator. California Association for the gifted. Retrieved on 13.04.2015 from: http://www.bertiekingore.com/Kingore-CAG.pdf
- Kogan, E. (2001). Gifted Bilingual students: a paradox? Peter Lang Publishing Inc. New York.
- Lundberg, I. (2006). Early language development as related to the acquisition of reading. *European Journal*, 14, 65-79.
- Lovecky, D. V. Highly gifted children and peer relationships Retrieved on 12.03.2015 from http://www.davidsongifted.org/db/Articles id 10129.aspx
- Maccagnano, A. (2007) *Identifying & enhancing the strength of Gifted Learners K-8*. California, Thousand Oaks, Corwin Press
- Maker, C. J. & Nelson, A. B. (1995). *Curriculum development and teaching strategies for gifted children*. Austin, TX: Pro-Ed.
- Margrain, V., & Farquhar, S. (2012). The education of gifted children in the early years: A first survey of views, teaching practices, resourcing and administration

issues. *APEX: The New Zealand Journal ofGifted Education*, *17*(1). Retrieved on 13.07.2015 from www.giftedchildren.org.nz/apex

- Manzanares, S. G. (1988), The Bilingual Education Act: Twenty Years Later, Retrieved on 25.06.2015 from: <u>https://ncela.ed.gov/files/rcd/BE021037/Fall88_6.pdf</u>
- Meeting the needs of Gifted and Talented pupils in Somerset schools and colleges (2006). Retrieved on 14.05.2015 from: http://new.n-somerset.gov.uk/NR/rdonlyres/40FB7A56-C853-4DDE-BC8C-189B05A34004/0/document 200405 NSPolicyForGiftedAndTalentedPupils.pdf
- Mendaglio, S. (2011) Dabrowski's Theory of Positive Disintegration: Some implications for teachers of gifted students. AGATE. 2002 15(2) 14-22 Retrieved on 16.08.2015 from: http://sengifted.org/archives/articles/dabrowskis-theory-of-positive-disintegration-some-implications-for-teachers-of-gifted-students
- Mendaglio, S. (1998) "Counselling Gifted Students: Issues and Recommendations for Teachers and Counselors." *AGATE* 12, no 1: 18-25.
- Ministry of Education in New Zealand (2000). *Gifted and Talented StudentsMeeting Their Needs inNew Zealand Schools*, Learning Media Limited, Wellington, New Zealand. Retrieved on September 2013 from: <u>www.learningmedia.co.nz</u>
- Morrison S. George. (2006) Teaching in America. Fourth edition. University of North Teaxas, United States.
- Monaco, T. (Ed.) (1999) Gifted Program Evaluation: Ensuring Equity and Excellence. ISBN# 0-88092-240-0

- Moon, S.M., Kolloff, P., Robinson, A., Dixon, F., & Feldhusen, J. (2009). The Purdue Three-Stage Model. Systems & models for developing programs for the gifted and talented, 2nd Edition, Renzulli, J.S., ed. Waco, Texas: Prufrock Press.
- Munro, J. Psychology of gifted learning Sessions 2 and 4: Intellectual development and gifted learning Retrieved on 20.12.2015 https://students.education.unimelb.edu.au/selage/pub/readings/psyglearn/PGL-Intellectdevel.pdf
- Myths and Stereotypes for Gifted Children Dublin City School District- Retrieved on September 2015 from: https://dcsgiftedservicesandresources.wiki.dublinschools.net/Myths+and+Truths+abo ut+Gifted+Learner
- National Excellence: A Case for Developing America's Talent October1993. Retrieved on August 2014 from: https://www.ocps.net/cs/ese/programs/gifted/Documents/National%20Excellence_%2
 0A%20Case%20for%20Developing%20America's%20Talent %20Introduction.pdf
- Nemer, K. M. (2002). Understudied education: Toward building a homeschooling Research agenda (Occasional Paper No. 48). Retrieved from the National Center for the Privatization in Education website: http://ncspe.org/publications_files/114_OP48.pdf
- Needham, V. (2012). Primary teachers' perceptions of the social and emotional aspects of gifted and talented education. APEX: The New Zealand Journal of Gifted Education, 17(1). Retrieved from: www.giftedchildren.org.nz/apex
- Nichol, P. Kathy, English Language Learners and Gifted IdentificationExploring the Perceptions of Teachers and Parents (2013), North central University, Arizona.
- Nurturing Gifted and Talented Children. A parent-Teacher partnership. New Zealand Ministry of Education (2008). Retrieved on 12.03.2014 from:

https://gifted.tki.org.nz/assets/Uploads/files/Nurturing-Gifted-and-Talented-ChildrenA-Parent-Teacher-Partnership.pdf

- Overview of Sternberg's Triarchic Theory of Intelligence (January 2004). Retrieved on September 2013 from: http://wilderdom.com/personality/L2-2SternbergTriarchicTheory.html
- Olsen. Peggy, What Is Gifted Education? History, Models & Issues retrieved on 25.02.2015 http://study.com/academy/lesson/what-is-gifted-education-history-models-issues.html
- Partnow, E. (Ed.). (1978). *The quotable woman: An encyclopedia of useful quotations indexed by subject & author, 1800-on.* Garden City, NY: Anchor Books
- Piirto, J. (1999). *Talented children and adults and their development and education*. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Merrill.
- Piechowski, M. M. (1997). Emotional giftedness: The measure of intrapersonal intelligence. In N. Colange-lo and G. Davis (Eds.), Handbook of gifted education (pp. 366 381). Needham Heights, MA: Allyn & Bacon.
- Publication Manual. (2009). *Publication manual of the American Psychological Association*(6th ed.). Washington, D.C.: American Psychological Association
- Queensland Government: Education Queensland. (n.d). Gifted and talented students action plan 2008-2010. Retrieved 25.04.2016 from: http://www.learningplace.com.au/uploads/suborgimages/158/File/Coloured%20Acti on%20Plan%20Version%202.pdf
- Renzulli, Joseph S(1990) A practical system for identifying gifted and talented students, Early Child Development and Care– retrieved on 07.10.2015 http://www.gifted.uconn.edu/sem/semart04.html

- Renzulli, J. (1978). What makes giftedness? Re-examining a definition. *Phi Delta Kappan*, 60, 180-184 and 261
- Renzulli, J.S. (1986). The Three-Ring Conceptionof Giftedness: A Developmental Model forCreative Productivity. In R. Sternberg &J.Davidson (Eds.), Conceptions of giftedness (53-92). New York: Cambridge UniversityPress.
- Renzulli, J. S., & Renzulli, S. R. (2010). The schoolwide enrichment model: A focus on student strengths and interests. *Gifted Education International*, 26, 140-157.
- Renzulli, Joseph. S.: The Three-Ring Conception of Giftedness at the Schoolwide Enrichment Model (SEM). Retrieved on January 2014 from website: http://www.gigers.com/matthias/gifted/three rings.html
- Renzulli, S. J. (Ed.) (2004). Identification of Students for Gifted and Talented Programs. California, Thousand Oaks, Corwin Press
- Redefining Giftedness for a New Century: Shifting the Paradigm, March 2010. Retrieved on August 2014 from website: http://www.nagc.org.442elmp01.blackmesh.com/sites/default/files/Position%20State ment/RedefiningGiftednessforaNewCentury.pdf
- Robinson, A. &Clinkenbeard R.C. (1998) History of Giftedness: Perspectives from the Past Presage Modern Scholarship. Retrieved on 12.07.2015 from: http://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007%2F978-0-387-74401-8_2
- Roundy, L. Human Growth and Development. Sternberg's Triarchic Theory of Intelligence. Retrieved from: https://study.com/academy/lesson/sternbergs-triarchic-theory-of-intelligence.html
- Shane N. Phillipson, SivanesPhillipson,(2011) and Deborah M. Eyre. Being Gifted in Hong Kong: An Examination of the Region's Policy for Gifted Education. Sage Pub. Hong Kong.

- Schollum, Brendan (2006) Extending Gifted and Talented Students: USA Experiences. Retrieved on 18.07.2015 from: http://www.educationalleaders.govt.nz/Leadership-development/Professionalinformation/Principals-sabbatical-reports/Report-archives-for-2007-2014/Secondaryaward-recipients-2007/Schollum-Brendan
- Sternberg's Triarchic Theory of Intelligence. Retrieved on 13.07.2015 from http://wilderdom.com/personality/L2-2SternbergTriarchicTheory.html
- Sternberg J. Robert, From Intelligence to Leadership: a Brief Intellectual Autobiography Retrieved on 17.08.2015 from http://gcq.sagepub.com/content/55/4/309
- Supporting Gifted Students in the North East School Division (February 2008). Retrieved on June 2014 from website: http://archive.nesd.ca/~studentservices/files/Final_Gifted_Report.pdf
- Sutherland, M. (2005). Gifted and Talented in the early years, Practical activities for children aged 3 to 5. Paul Chapman Publishing, London.
- Tammy Newman Tucker (2008). Searching for hidden treasure: the identification of underrepresented gifted and talented students. University of North Texas. Retrieved on 30.09.2015 from http://digital.library.unt.edu/ark:/67531/metadc9020/m2/1/high res d/dissertation.pdf
- Thomerson, Gem Courtney, Ed.D. (2010) Who is she? A case study of a teacher of gifted learners. University of South Carolina. Retrieved on 27.02.2016 from http://pqdtopen.proquest.com/doc/835066814.html?FMT=ABS
- Unlu,P, (2008) An Application of the Three Stage-Purdue Model in Physics Education in Turkey. *Journal of Applied Sciences, 8: 4137-4144. Retrieved on* 28.02.2015

http://scialert.net/fulltext/?doi=jas.2008.4137.4144

- VanTassel-Baska, J. & Baska, L. (1993). The roles of educational personnel in counseling the gifted. In L. K. Silverman (Ed.), Counseling the gifted and talent-ed. (pp. 181 200). Denver, CO: Love.
- Watson, S. The Many Definitions of Giftedness Retrieved on 15.02.2015 from http://specialed.about.com/od/giftedness/a/gifteddef.htm
- Webster, Jerry. (2018, June 14). Operational Definition of Behavior in a School Setting. Retrieved from https://www.thoughtco.com/operational-definition-ofbehavior-3110867

Referencing List

¹No Child Left Behind Act, P.L. 107-110, Title IX, Part A, Definition 22) Retrieved on 29.11.2015 from<u>https://www.nagc.org/resources-publications/resources/frequently-asked-questions-about-gifted-education</u>

²NACG, Redefining Giftedness for a New Century: Shifting the Paradigm, March 2010. Retrieved on 30.11.2015

https://www.nagc.org/sites/default/files/PositionStatement/RedefiningGiftednessforaNewCentury.pdf

³Kennedy, J. (2012)Definitions of Giftedness; retrieved on 15.12.2015 from: https://educationaladvancement.wordpress.com/2012/05/01/5-definitions-of-giftedness/

⁴*Education of the gifted and talented. Report to the congress of US.(page 2) Retrieved on 15.12.2015 from:* <u>https://www.valdosta.edu/colleges/education/pcft/document%20/marland-report.pdf</u>

⁵Sylvia B. Rimm, (2006), Key to Parenting Gifted. Scottsdale, AZ : Great Potential Press

⁶ Françoys Gagné, Ph. D.2000, A Differentiated Model of Giftedness and Talent (DMGT)

⁷ *Munro, J. (2001),* Gifted and talented children in (and out) of the classroom <u>http://www.nicurriculum.org.uk/docs/inclusion_and_sen/gifted/gifted_children_060306.pdf</u>

⁸Baldwin, L. Myths about gifted students Symposium 2017 Myths 10-2017 Retrieved on 20.08.2017 from: <u>http://kagegifted.org/wp-content/uploads/2011/11/Symposium-2017-Myths-10-2017-Lynette-Baldwin-copy.pdf</u>

⁹Baldwin, L. Myths about gifted students Symposium 2017 Myths 10-2017 Retrieved on 20.08.2017 from: <u>http://kagegifted.org/wp-content/uploads/2011/11/Symposium-2017-Myths-10-2017-Lynette-Baldwin-copy.pdf</u>

¹⁰Baldwin, L. Myths about gifted students Symposium 2017 Myths 10-2017 Retrieved on 20.08.2017 from: <u>http://kagegifted.org/wp-content/uploads/2011/11/Symposium-2017-Myths-10-2017-Lynette-Baldwin-copy.pdf</u>

¹¹Myths and stereotypes, being gifted: the gift; Video Study Kit, CEC, 1990.1 Retrieved on 20.08.2017 from: <u>https://www.abcontario.ca/resources-support/understanding-giftedness/myths-stereotypes</u>

¹² Holly Joy Perham,(2012) Interpersonal Skills of Gifted Students: Risk versus Resilience, arizona state university Retrieved on 17.08.2017 from: https://repository.asu.edu/attachments/93657/content//tmp/package-GZXCKC/Perham asu 0010E 11789.pdf ¹³ Tests & Assessments Retrieved on 09.10.2016 from: <u>https://www.nagc.org/resources-publications/gifted-education-practices/identification/tests-assessments</u>

¹⁴ Gail R. Ryser, (2005,)Placement Information Data: Unraveling the Mystery, Texas Association for the Gifted and TalentedTEMPO, Retrieved on 30.11.2017 from: <u>https://www.txgifted.org/files/Tempo/2005/2005-3.pdf</u>